
Mount Greylock Regional School District School Committee 
Location: Zoom Remote Meeting Date: Monday, November 23, 2020  

Time: 5:00 PM 
 
Per Governor Baker’s order suspending certain provisions of the Open Meeting Law, 
M.G.L. c. 30A sec. 20, the public will not be allowed to physically access this School 
Committee meeting. 
 
Please join the meeting via Zoom link:  
https://zoom.us/j/97747015786?pwd=aEFZZFVDUjZySTUyMi9wSnBINXJmZz09 
Meeting ID: 977 4701 5786 
Passcode: 485676 
One tap mobile 
+16468769923,,97747015786# US (New York) 

or watch the TV broadcast on WilliNet TV channel 1302 in Williamstown.  
 
Please see our Public Comment Policy for Guidelines regarding Public Comment at 
Remote Meetings: 
https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/browse/mtgreylockset/mtgreylock/BEDH-R  
 
 

Open Session Agenda 
I. Call to order 

II. MISSION: At Mount Greylock Regional School District, our mission is to create a 
community of learners working together in a safe and challenging learning 
environment that encourages restorative based processes, respect, inclusive 
diversity, courtesy, integrity, and responsibility through high expectations and 
cooperation resulting in life-long learning and personal growth. 

III. Welcome to Superintendent Jason McCandless 
IV. Presentation of Superintendent’s Award for Academic Excellence 

V. School Committee Member Introduction and Reorganization 
A. Chair VOTE 
B. Vice-Chair VOTE 
C. Secretary VOTE 

VI. Public Comment 

https://zoom.us/j/97747015786?pwd=aEFZZFVDUjZySTUyMi9wSnBINXJmZz09
https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/browse/mtgreylockset/mtgreylock/BEDH-R


VII. Approval of minutes 
A. October 8, 2020 VOTE  
B. October 16, 2020 VOTE 
C. October 22, 2020 VOTE 
D. October 28, 2020 VOTE 

VIII. Athletic Director Update 
IX. Principal Updates 

A. MGRS 
B. LES 
C. WES 

X. Superintendent Updates 
A. Recognition of Retirees 
B. Covid Learning Updates 

XI. Appoint District Secretary VOTE 
XII. Appointment of Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer VOTE 
XIII. Appoint Records Access Officer VOTE 
XIV. Business Administrator Update 

A. Warrants Review/Approval Process VOTE 
B. Warrants Review 

1. Payroll 
2. Accounts Payable 
3. MGRS School Building 

C. Finance Subcommittee Reorganization VOTE 
D. School Building Committee Slate Update VOTE 
E. WES Williams Capital Gift Use Approval VOTE 
F. MGRS Multipurpose Building Closeout VOTE 
G. FY22 Budget Timeline 

XV. MASC Annual Meeting Update 
XVI. MGRS Fields Proposal from Perkins Eastman/Next Steps VOTE 

XVII. Discussion on reserving a portion of the gift for MGRS renewal fund ​VOTE 
XVIII. Upcoming meetings/events: 

A. Dec. 8, 2020- School Committee Meeting 
B. Dec. 22, 2020- School Committee Special Session 

XIX. Other business not anticipated by the Chair within 48 hours of meeting 
XX. Motion to Adjourn 
 



 
 
This meeting will be posted to our YouTube Channel 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCLR0nrLhpZHIyPFUhaMxPSg/videos​  at a later time. 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCLR0nrLhpZHIyPFUhaMxPSg/videos


Mount Greylock Regional School District 
School Committee Chair History 

 
The School Committee reorganizes each November during its regular meeting. It has utilized a 
practice of alternating the role of Chair between the towns of Lanesborough and Williamstown.  
 
Over the course of the last decade, numerous periods have seen variations in decisions about length 
of tenure of a Chair. Notably, resignations and K-12 regionalization have produced more rapid 
changes and deliberation over the process of determining roles. 
 

 

Name  Town of Residence  Dates 

Christina Conry  Lanesborough  2/21/2020 - 

Dan Caplinger  Williamstown  11/14/2019 - 2/21/2020 

Regina Dilego  Lanesborough  Acting Chair 5/23/19 - 8/8/2019  
Voted Chair 8/8/19 - 11/14/2019 

Joe Bergeron  Williamstown  11/8/2018 - 5/23/2019 

Joe Bergeron 
(Transition) 

Williamstown  11/28/2017 - 11/8/2018 

Sheila Hebert  
(MG Legacy) 

Lanesborough  11/15/2016 - 11/21/2017 

Carrie Greene 
(MG Legacy) 

Williamstown  11/20/2012 - 11/15/2016 

Robert Ericson  
(MG Legacy) 

Lanesborough  11/2011 - 11/2012 

David Archibald 
(MG Legacy) 

Williamstown  11/2010 - 11/2011 



From: Sheila Parks
To: School Committee; Putnam, Robert
Cc: Vigiard, Stacie
Subject: Artificial turf project/ for public comment
Date: Monday, October 26, 2020 10:52:25 AM

Dear members of the School Committee and Superintendent Putnam,

We are writing to you because we are concerned about the School Commmmittee's recent
decision to move forward with the artificial turf option without following through on a
previous decision (September 2019) to include proposals for a natural grass field or other
alternatives. We were unable to attend this meeting, but understand that the majority of the
public comments were from community members who were against the artificial turf option or
at least against making this decsion now. 

In little over a week, several new members will be elected to the School Committee. This may
substantially change the opinions and decision making within this body. Pushing through a
vote so close to the election while ignoring previous commitments to look at other options and
with parents and community members voicing their concerns, seems forced and disingenuous.

We have serious concerns about the safety of artificial turf for young people: in terms of the
injury rate on artificial turf vs natural grass, and environmental/air quality issues (potential
existence of PFAS in the plastic grass and other contaminants in the crumb rubber infill (heavy metals,
PAHs, etc.)). The air quality issues could cause health effects in the short term for students with
asthma and compromised immune systems. It is entirely possible it could also have long term
effects that will not be fully known until these students are adults.

There are also serious environmental concerns related to the surrounding land and water with
potential long term leaching of PFAS and heavy metals into the ground water and the Green
River, which have not been adequately addressed by the School Committee or turf proponents.
Additionally, although "recycling" has been mentioned as an end solution to disposal of the
turf and infill once it needs to be replaced, there are no recycling facilities that currently accept
artificial turf for recycling. It is irresponsible to saddle future generations with this amount of
"trash" to safely dispose of.

Lastly, there has not been a convincing and thorough cost analysis for the long term with
artificial turf.  Obviously, it will need to be replaced in the future. It requires maintenance just
as natural grass does. Side by side comparisons of the long term maintenance costs for each
option need to be obtained and shared with the public.

We urge the School Committee to step back and honor their previous commitment to other
bids and options. We ask that they seriously consider the potential long-term health effects on
our most vulnerable population.

Thank you,
David and Sheila Parks
Lanesborough

mailto:dpandshe@gmail.com
mailto:schoolcommittee@mgrhs.org
mailto:rputnam@mgrhs.org
mailto:svigiard@mgrhs.org


Mt. Greylock Regional School District

School Committee Open Session Minutes 

Date:​ October 8th, 2020 
Start:​  6:01 PM  
Adjourn:​ 9:07 PM 

Location:  
Meeting Room A109 
NO Public Attendance Permitted* 

*Per Governor Baker’s order suspending certain provisions
of the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A sec. 20, the public
will not be allowed to physically access this School
Committee meeting.

In Attendance: 

Committee Members: Also Present: 
C. Conry, Chair
J. Art
A. Carter
C. Greene
S. Miller
A. Terranova

Absent: 

Dr. Putnam, Superintendent 
Joe Bergeron, Business Administrator 

Jo 

Item Comments Motion Second Vote 

I. Call to Order Meeting called to order by C. Conry at 6:01 PM 

II. Mission MISSION: At Mount Greylock Regional School District, our mission is to create a 
community of learners working together in a safe and challenging learning environment 
that encourages restorative based processes, respect, inclusive diversity, courtesy, 
integrity and responsibility through high expectations and cooperation resulting in 
life-long learning and personal growth. 

III. Public Comment 1. Julia Bowen of Williamstown gave her comment over the phone on agenda item VI. A.
(DEI). Julia invited the community to a DEI Convening, which will take place Tuesday,
October 13th, from 4:30 to 6:00 PM via Zoom.

2. Stephanie Boyd of Williamstown gave her written comment on agenda item IX to
express her dismay of the process of the turf field deliberation of the School Committee.

Page 1 

DRAFT



Mt. Greylock Regional School District 

3. Hugh Daley of Williamstown gave his written comment on agenda item IX, urging the 
School Committee to be deliberate and prudent in their decision-making regarding the turf 
field, a project he believes should be held off at this time.  
 

IV. Approval of Minutes Submitted in the meeting packet for review and approval by the School Committee are 
meeting minutes from September 10, 15, and 24, 2020. 

MOTION to approve meeting minutes 
from September 10, 2020 by S. Miller, 
seconded by A. Terranova 
 
S. Miller added a comment to section VIII 
of the minutes, updated in previous 
minutes. 
 

Miller Terranova 6-0-0 

MOTION to approve meeting minutes 
from September 15, 2020 by S. Miller, 
seconded by A. Carter 
 
S. Miller wanted to add a comment about 
the state metrics, updated in previous 
minutes. 
 

Miller Carter 6-0-0 

MOTION to approve meeting minutes 
from September 24, 2020 by S. Miller, 
seconded by A. Carter 
 
S. Miller pointed out a minor error, which 
when amended would remove the word 
“raising” at the top of page four of the 
minutes. 
 

Miller Carter 6-0-0 

V. Chair Updates A. School Committee member letter of resignation -  ​C. Conry read Regina DiLego’s 
Letter of Resignation to the MGRSD School Committee, which is effective immediately. 
C. Conry wanted to personally thank Regina for her continued hard work. S. Miller 
seconded the sentiment. 
 
C. Conry read the District statement regarding this mid-term vacancy on the School 
Committee for next steps. A contact at DESE was unfamiliar with the timing for this 
resignation and referred the District to the State. The State responded that any resignations 
after April would lead to an appointment that would last until the next biennial election, 
which means this appointment would be for two years until November of 2022. The 
school committee and two town selectboards are beginning the process to fill the seat. 
 

Page 2 

DRAFT



Mt. Greylock Regional School District 

The committee spoke about getting the word out on the vacant position, the application of 
which is posted on the School Committee section of the website.  
 
B. Anti-Racism Resolution: Discussion 
(VOTE) - ​C. Greene read the Anti-Racism 
Resolution to the committee and public. It 
will be voted at the delegate assembly in 
November. A. Carter would have liked a 
statement about developing programs 
specifically for students, not just staff. 
 
MOTION to support the MGRSD 
School Committee Anti-Racism 
Resolution by A. Carter, seconded by J. 
Art  
 

Carter Art 6-0-0 

VI. Superintendent 
Updates 

A. Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion: Internal and Community Related - ​Dr. Putnam 
informed the committee about Dr. McCandless, who is already taking the initiative for 
leading the District. He is studying up on our issues, including DEI, so that he will be 
prepared to take over as Superintendent next month.    

B. 2020-2021 School Update - ​There will be an October 22nd meeting that is focused 
entirely on education and our reopening updates. Dr. Putnam gave reports on the 
challenges the District is continuing to face, but that the students are engaged in learning. 
He gave brief updates on all three schools that included safety, education, and special 
education. He also gave some updates regarding the Remote Academy. Several committee 
members shared personal and positive updates regarding the reopening for their children. 
A. Carter and J. Bergeron gave personal updates about their childrens’ return to school. S. 
Miller gave concerns about the numbers and the metrics that the District is using, which 
will be addressed in the Education Subcommittee.  
 

VII. Subcommittee / 
Liaison Reports 

A. Policy -  
 
1. Discussion of Agenda Format 
(BEDB) Policy and Practice (VOTE) - 
C. Greene addressed an amendment that 
would change the three day Agenda and 
supporting materials posting deadline to 
change to 48 hours before the meeting. S. 
Miller said that having more time to read 
materials is always welcomed. J. Art made 
a point of getting materials to the public as 
well. Dr. Putnam warned that with too 
much public involvement before the 

Greene Miller 6-0-0 

Page 3 

DRAFT



Mt. Greylock Regional School District 

meeting, social media becomes a forum of 
discussion before the School Committee 
has a chance to do their deliberation. He 
suggested being very descriptive in the 
agenda for the public as opposed to 
sharing all materials. C. Greene said that it 
would be best to address these issues 
during talks of the committee’s review of 
protocols and procedures. 
 
MOTION to revise the Agenda Format 
(BEDB) by C. Greene, seconded by S. 
Miller 
 
B. Finance - ​J. Art and the finance committee reviewed warrants and discussed Agenda 
item VIII A, the Multipurpose Building project. 
 
C. Education - ​S. Miller reminded the community that the next Education Subcommittee 
meeting is Tuesday, October 13 at 3:30 PM via Zoom. Miller wondered if members from 
the Mt. Greylock student council was going to participate in meetings, and whether the 
elementary school should have participants as well. C. Conry said that yes, at least Mt. 
Greylock students will be included in the future. 
 

VIII. Business 
Administrator Updates 
 

A. Multipurpose Building project 
update + final change order (VOTE) - 
Change Order IV was presented to the 
committee. Concrete curbs will be used, 
insulation has plywood covering, exterior 
door hold opens, and lastly surge 
protection devices were changes made.  
 
MOTION to approve Change Order IV 
by C. Greene, seconded by J. Art 
 

Greene Art 6-0-0 

B. Review and approval of Capital Gift 
related Perkins Eastman invoices 
(VOTE) - ​J. Bergeron reviewed the 
invoices listed below. S. Miller reiterated 
that the gift should be used for student 
needs, not for administrative purposes, 
such as the new building or trailer rental.  
 

Art Greene 6-0-0 

Page 4 

DRAFT



Mt. Greylock Regional School District 

MOTION to approve payment out of 
the Williams College Capital Gift to Mt. 
Greylock of invoices numbers 15 
(October 14th, 2019), 20, 22, 23, and 26 
(September 8th, 2020) to Perkins 
Eastman, totalling $75,963.80 by J. Art, 
seconded by C. Greene 
 
C. FY21 Update - ​J. Bergeron noted that we are still waiting for several final numbers to 
determine the budget. There are at least two weeks to close out the fiscal year, but an 
extension on closing will be most-likely be submitted by Mr. Bergeron. It is unclear if 
October 1st is still the deadline from the state.  
 

IX. Phase II / Field 
Project Discussion and 
Next Steps 

C. Greene presented her list of pros and cons to a vote on moving forward. Her pros 
included current committee members voting for the project they were involved with, to 
stay on track for the April 2022 Title IX and ADA compliance deadline, and to provide a 
potential year-round field for the community and school, especially during COVID. Cons 
included a number of community members who don’t feel their concerns were adequately 
addressed, no other promised public forum, and that documentation isn’t available in a 
concise and cohesive manner. C. Conry mentioned she would like all information 
packaged with all information in one place. A. Carter thought reasons to vote were more 
compelling, citing that the current field is not playable and out of ADA compliance. J. Art 
was not comfortable pushing back the compliance issue, but was wondering if the vote 
would have a cost attached. A. Terranova said that every delay means a group in the 
community is not being serviced and gave a timeline of discussions and meetings leading 
up to today. He noted that most everything that was asked of the committee was 
completed. C. Greene mentioned that if this went forward, the district and towns could put 
money aside ahead of time for the 10-year replacement costs. S. Miller reiterated that the 
monetary gift from Williams wasn’t meant to relieve taxpayers of the two towns but was 
given as a gift for the needs of the students, and should help them more so than projects 
such as the new Administrative Building or the temporary Administrative trailer. J. Art 
articulated that because of COVID, reopening schools, and many district administrative 
changes, it’s understandable that this topic may have seemed pushed aside. The 
committee took time to have a lengthy discussion on what a vote on the issue should look 
like, potentially happening at the October 16 meeting. The committee suggested holding a 
vote at the October 16 meeting in regards to a potential bid for the field. S. Miller offered 
his assistance with gathering comments and materials, as well as contacting the Phase II 
committee.  
 

X. Upcoming Meetings / 
Events 

A. Education Subcommittee Meeting (remote via Zoom) 10/13/20 -  
 
Meeting will occur at 3:30 PM via Zoom. 
 

Page 5 

DRAFT



Mt. Greylock Regional School District 

B. School Committee Meeting (remote via Zoom) 10/22/20 - 
 
Meeting will occur at 6:00 PM via Zoom.  
 
Athletic Field Update Meeting on (remote via Zoom) 10/16/20 -  
 
Meeting will occur at 12:00 PM via Zoom. 
 

XI. Other Business not 
anticipated by the Chair 
within 48 hours of 
meeting 

No business to discuss. 

XII. Motion to Adjourn MOTION to adjourn by A. Terranova, 
seconded by J. Art  
 
The committee adjourned at 9:07 PM. 

Terranova Art 6-0-0 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Eli Phillips 
Mount Greylock Minutes Recorder 

Page 6 

DRAFT



Mount Greylock Regional School District School Committee 
Location: Zoom Remote Meeting 

Date: Friday, October 16, 2020 

Time: 12:00 pm 

Per Governor Baker’s order suspending certain provisions of the Open Meeting Law, M.G.L. c. 
30A sec. 20, the public will not be allowed to physically access this School Committee meeting. 
This meeting will also be posted on the MGRSD YouTube page 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCLR0nrLhpZHIyPFUhaMxPSg 

Meeting Minutes 

School Committee members present: Art, Carter, Conry, Greene, Miller, Terranova 

Others present: R. Putnam, J. Bergeron, J. McCandless 

I. Meeting called to order at 12:03 p.m.

II. Reading of the Mission: At Mount Greylock Regional School District, our mission is to
create a community of learners working together in a safe and challenging learning
environment that encourages restorative based processes, respect, inclusive diversity,
courtesy, integrity, and responsibility through high expectations and coo

III. peration resulting in life-long learning and personal growth.

IV. Presentation by J Bergeron on Capital Gift from Williams College, use of funds, and
history of athletics fields project.  Presentation materials available on the MGRSD
website: https://sites.google.com/mgrhs.org/fields/home. Presentation includes:

I. $3.1 M spent in total from the gift
II. $110 K spent from non-gift funds for (30X60) facilities storage and Nordic ski

support building;
III. Approximately $3.7M remains of gift
IV. Unspent principal in the Fund will grow or recede without limit along with the

college’s endowment.
V. Current fields assessment and update;

I. 3 year intensive project with PJC Organics funded out of operating budget
to improve existing fields ($19,000 spent to date)

VI. Explanation of past assessment of question of synthetic turf vs. natural grass
VII. It turns out Nordic & Storage building is not sufficient for dual use;

I. Could dedicate that building for athletics support & storage (including
waxing for Nordic) and construct other facilities storage building near
construction trailer for approx. $90k—this may require additional
fundraising for Nordic building fit out;

VIII. Outline of 9 decision points facing the school committee

V. Public Comment

DRAFT

https://sites.google.com/mgrhs.org/fields/home


I. E-mail from Joan Blair read by C Conry thanking committee and urging 
committee to hold off on policy decisions until after the election and hold off on 
major expenditures. 

II. Email from C Malone read by C Conry thanking committee and expressing 
opposition to artificial turf field for concerns for replacement costs, lack of 
recyclability, potential health and environmental impacts, lower cost of grass, 
need for further study, lack of public support, and preference for track. 

III. Email from W Penner with concerns over process for the proposed athletic fields 
project, lack of comprehensive financial plan, lack of public engagement, past 
vote to include natural grass option, potential for loss of trust. 

IV. Email from B Spann with concern about process leading to today’s meeting, 
preference for natural grass fields and track over the synthetic turf, lack of 
investigation of natural grass options. 

V. Comments of J Skavlem, former chair of Phase II committee, including: please 
respect and listen to voices of stakeholders who developed proposal over 5 
years; time to move forward, there comes a time when a decision has to be 
made.  

VI. Comment from D Keiser-Clark, expressing concern about process lacking 
transparency and public participation, concerns about PFAS and other health 
and safety risk, threat of loss of trust. 

VII. M Sussman, member of Williamstown Finance Committee: over the five years 
the process has been going on, a third of the gift was always identified for future 
capital expenses; asking the committee to address commitment to preserve 1/3 
of the gift for future capital expenses.  

VIII. E Smith expressing concerns about synthetic turf field; asking about commitment 
to new field vs. renewal of existing field 

IX. A. Jeschawitz urges school committee to put together comprehensive plan / 
needs assessment for next 5 to 10 years;  

X. J Beringer comments opposed to artificial turf, but speaking primarily about 
Nordic Waxing Facility concern about the delay of that project and suggestion 
they do fundraising to support their project;  

XI. S Boyd: notes she is completely impressed with the documents that have been 
pulled together; explains her involvement with the project, and various advisory 
committees; clearly we are not ready to move forward; It is all about the kids, but 
we should be teaching the kids how to make decisions, mentions kids with 
concerns about fields being intimidated to speak; need to find a way for all the 
voices to be heard; Notes $700,000 - 800,000 premium for artificial grass field 
over natural grass field. What could we do with that money? Well and irrigation, 
upgrades to John Allen field; seconds call for a comprehensive plan and needs 
assessment; 

VI. Discussion and possible vote re use of funds of capital gift  
I. C Greene’s question for Joe about status of bid documents –  

I. Work done so far is up on website; 
II. Happy to do additional work about rfp bid documents, has not been 

quoted yet   
II. Question about water – don’t know what it it would cost to drill well and add 

irrigation 
III. Re need for the current committee to make decision, noting what future school 

committee will need to deal with; 
IV. S Miller notes we have been dealing with this issue for years; 

DRAFT



V. A Carter thanks Joe for the presentation; notes that we are not far from where we 
were two years ago weighs in on process; question re conception this is rushed; 

VI. C Greene moves we proceed with the bid documents that was approved in 
September of 2019; second by C Conry.  

I. L von Holtz –  
I. notes problems with how bidding was to be structured;  
II. Notes need for waxing facility that can be used in other seasons;  

III. Notes need for ADA & Title IX compliance;  
IV. Notes participation advantages from artificial turf field; 

II. C Greene notes need for code compliance, work on value engineering to 
be incorporated, interest in getting more information on turf vs. grass, and 
interest in a track; 

III. A Carter notes she is struggling with concept of bidding a grass field as 
well as an artificial turf 

VII. C Greene withdraws motion. 
VIII. Dr. McCandless is recognized.   Notes the importance of TIX and ADA 

compliance declines to address process issue 
IX. J Bergeron says he is reaching out on bidding issue. 
X. Discussion of alternate bid packages one for natural grass and one for synthetic 

turf. 
XI. Discussion of costs to rebid. 

XII. C Conry notes we have to talk about wax room as well. 
I. Discussion of proposal to devote 30x60 building to athletic storage and 

Nordic team needs and construct facilities storage building on trailer site; 
II. Committee members note support for proposal; 

III. Some discussion of what the source of those funds could be; 
XIII. Motion: A Terranova moves that we devote 30x60 building to athletic storage 

and Nordic team needs and that we authorize spending up to $90,000 from 
capital gift to construct facilities storage building on trailer site.  Greene seconds.  
Vote: All in favor, 6-0 vote taken alphabetically by roll call vote. 

XIV. Discussion returns to field. 
I. Discussion of bid document development 
II. Discussion of public concern about cost comparisons, financing, saving 

money from capital gift;  
III. A Terranova Moves to vote in favor of Phase II subcommittee 

recommendation to install a brockfill turf field with track as an add on  
Second by Miller.   

I. C. Conry questions whether we need to rescind prior vote 
II. J Bergeron notes procurement process and permitting 

III. C Greene notes that the motion might be to move the phase ii 
recommendation as value engineered into detailed design; 

IV. J Art notes risk of loss of goodwill by proceeding with the synthetic 
turf field without addressing concerns of communities, both boards 
of selectmen, and both finance committees. 

V. C Greene proposes a friendly amendment: move the phase II 
recommendation which includes compliance for title ix, ADA, and 
synthetic turf, as value engineered, and broc-fill, with the track as 
an add alternate into detailed design. 

VI. J Bergeron notes that he does not see a specific set of 
recommendations from the value engineering process.  He 

DRAFT



expresses concern that he won’t know how to operationalize the 
vote.     

VII. Need to look at the value engineering list and see what should be 
incorporated in the bid documents; the revisions of the documents 
will cost money;  

VIII. Terranova and Miller accept friendly amendment.   
IX. C Greene notes plan is to assess value engineering list and see 

what should be incorporated in the bid documents, and then bring 
the plan back to the committee. Notes that next week we could 
move something into detailed design 

X.  Second proposed friendly amendment:    move the phase II 
recommendation which includes compliance for title ix and ADA, 
and synthetic turf, as value engineered, and broc-fill, with the track 
as an add alternate into detailed design by the following process 

I. Internal review of VE list and bid documents 
II. SC review and approval of VE and bid documents 

III. Develop Detailed design documents  
IV. ZBA review 
V. Go out to bid 

XI. Terranova and Miller accept friendly amendment. 
XII. S Miller raises question of timeline 
XIII. J Bergeron notes process is workable 
XIV. MOTION as amended: Terranova moves and Miller seconds to 

move the phase II recommendation which includes compliance for 
title ix and ADA, and a synthetic turf field, as value engineered 
and with broc-fill, with the track as an add alternate into detailed 
design by the following process: 

I. Internal review of VE list and bid documents 
II. SC review and approval of VE and bid documents 

III. Develop Detailed design documents  
IV. ZBA review 
V. Go out to bid 

IV. VOTE: Art no; Carter aye; Conry no; Greene, aye; Miller, aye; Terranova, 
aye.  

XV. Motion passes 4-2. 
I. Miller moves to adjourn, Terranova seconds; Art aye; Carter aye; Conry 

aye; Greene, aye; Miller, aye; Terranova, aye.  
VII. Adjourned at 3:48. 

 
  

DRAFT



Mt. Greylock Regional School District

 School Committee Open Session Minutes 

Date:​ October 22nd, 2020 
Start:​  6:03 PM 
Adjourn:​ 8:14 PM 

Location:  
Remote via Zoom 

*Per Governor Baker’s order suspending certain provisions
of the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A sec. 20, the public
will not be allowed to physically access this School
Committee meeting.

In Attendance: 

Committee Members: Also Present: 
C. Conry, Chair
J. Art
C. Greene
S. Miller
A. Terranova
A. Carter

Absent: 

Robert Putnam, Interim Superintendent 
Jason McCandless, Incoming Superintendent 
Joe Bergeron, Business Administrator 
Nolan Pratt, Principal - LES 
Jake Schutz, Principal - MGRS 
Kristen Thompson, Principal - WES 
Joelle Brookner, Director of Curriculum & Instruction 
Elea Kaatz, Director of Academic Technology 
Patrick Priester, Acting Director of Pupil Services 

Jo 

Item Comments Motion Second Vote 

I. Call to Order Meeting called to order by C. Conry at 6:03 PM 

II. Mission MISSION: At Mount Greylock Regional School District, our mission is to create a 
community of learners working together in a safe and challenging learning environment 
that encourages restorative based processes, respect, inclusive diversity, courtesy, 
integrity and responsibility through high expectations and cooperation resulting in 
life-long learning and personal growth. 

III. Principal Updates A. School Improvement Plans -
​LES​ - Principal Pratt shared a slideshow of LES’ four current goals: I - Continue to

improve technological curriculum and pedagogy; II - Social emotional curriculum related 
to COVID-19; III - Anti-racist curriculum; IV - Data driven goal.  

Page 1 

DRAFT



Mt. Greylock Regional School District 

     ​WES​ - Principal Thompson shared a draft of WES’ current goals for the year, drafted 
from last year’s committee: I - Student support; II - Creating a respectful, inclusive 
community; III - Curriculum; IV - Technology in the classroom.  
 
     MGRS​ - Principal Schutz shared the goals for MGRS: I - Ensuring 9th grade meets 
math standards; II - Ensure a respectful, inclusive school environment; III - Explore 
potential new opportunities for arts education; IV - Expand social emotional wellness; V - 
Develop skills to better utilize data. 
 
B. Homeschool Numbers - ​Dr. Putnam shared the current homeschool numbers for the 
district, which has LES at 13, WES at 27, and MGRS at 19. He compared the numbers to 
previous years. 
 

IV. Special Education / 
ELL / Title I Updates by 
Director of Pupil 
Services 

Patrick Priester shared his presentation which included special education enrollment 
numbers and percentages. He also presented data on ELL services, Title 1, and special 
education staffing for the district. C. Greene asked about the impact of COVID-19. Mr. 
Priester said that finding substitutes and the cohort model has made it difficult this year. 
 

V. School Reopening 
Report 

Joelle Brookner and Elea Kaatz co-presented preliminary results from a community 
survey regarding our school year opening, which polled students, parents, and 
faculty/staff. The results appeared to be mostly positive for the district. 

VI. Public Comment 1.​ C. Conry read an email from Judith Reichert of Williamstown, related to the turf field 
debate, which urged the committee not to rush to a decision and that real grass would 
probably be safer to the environment. 
 
2. ​C. Conry read an email from Wendy Penner of Williamstown which expressed her 
concerns of a rushed vote to move forward with a turf field bid and no plan to advance a 
natural grass field bid in play, especially when a new school committee will need to 
continue this process shortly. 
 
3. ​C. Conry read an email from Marc McDermott of Williamstown. He supported any 
type of field progressing and expressed concerns that the continuous delays prevent any 
usage of a field for the community. 
 

VII. MGRS MSBA 
Building Project signing 
authority (VOTE) 

J. Bergeron explained that with Regina 
DiLego’s committee resignation, they will 
need to reassign a signing authority for the 
District. He recommended having the 
Superintendent take over the signing 
authority for the time being.  
 

Greene Art 6-0-0 

Page 2 

DRAFT



Mt. Greylock Regional School District 

MOTION to approve the 
recommendation of the Business 
Administrator to appoint the 
Superintendent as the signing authority 
by C. Greene, seconded by J. Art 

VIII. MGRS Capital Gift 
Use 
 

A. Report and discussion on field-related value engineering and bid options -  
 
J. Bergeron presented updates from Perkins Eastman and Travers on potential bids to the 
district. C. Greene suggested a possible survey on the turf field. J. Art supported waiting 
on a decision instead of pushing something through. A. Terranova disagreed and said it is 
the job of the committee to make these decisions and go forward, with artificial turf. C. 
Conry thought a climate survey would be valuable to let many people have a voice. C. 
Greene said percentages of community support should be incorporated. A. Carter didn’t 
feel like “rushed” was the right word for the situation, but that a decision should be made 
with the committee who had done the research. She worried that a survey may be based 
on incorrect information floating around the community. S. Miller reiterated all the work 
and research the committee has done for the past years on the issue and urged a vote for 
next week. The committee also discussed differences of community perception regarding 
public trust and how there are various opinions of the committee’s handling of the turf 
issue. Dr. Putnam explained the copious amounts work that Mr. Bergeron has been 
currently putting into the project. 
B. Discussion and possible vote on reserving a portion of the gift for MGRS renewal 
fund -  
 
C. Conry said there was a recommendation to set aside 1.5 million dollars of the Capital 
Gift for infrastructure, but it’s never been voted by the committee. S. Miller said some of 
the money has already been used for different projects, one being the MGRS boiler. A. 
Terranova explained where the 1.5 million figure came from, and suggested putting this to 
rest. C. Greene thought it would be helpful to take a vote on what portion they should set 
aside. J. Art suggested letting this issue roll over to the new committee. A. Terranova said 
he was not in favor of a limit to the endowment. No vote will occur at this time. 
C. Discussion and possible vote to move field project to detailed design -  
 
As there is no design yet, a vote will not happen at this time. 

IX. Other Business not 
anticipated by the Chair 
within 48 hours of 
meeting 

C. Greene offered thanks to A. Terranova, J. Art, and A. Carter for their years of service 
on the committee and their hard work. She also thanked Dr. Putnam for stepping in and 
guiding the schools and for Dr. McCandless for joining some meetings. S. Miller 
expressed his thanks as well.  

X. Motion to Adjourn MOTION to adjourn by A. Terranova, 
seconded by S. Miller 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:14 PM 

Terranova Miller 6-0-0 

 
Page 3 

DRAFT



Mt. Greylock Regional School District 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Eli Phillips 
Mount Greylock RSD Minutes Recorder 

Page 4 

DRAFT



1 

DRAFT 

Mount Greylock Regional School District School Committee and Select Boards of 
Lanesborough and Williamstown  

Date: Wednesday, May 28, 2020  
Time: 6:00 pm  
Location: Remote ZOOM meeting 

Per Governor Baker’s order suspending certain provisions of the Open Meeting Law, M.G.L. c. 
30A sec. 20, the public will not be allowed to physically access this School Committee meeting. 
This meeting can be viewed live on the MGRSD YouTube Channel. 

It will also be broadcast on WilliNet TV channel 1302 in Williamstown. 

SC members present: Al Terranova, Christina Conry, Jamie Art, Carrie Greene, Steve Miller, Ali 
Carter.  

Lanesborough Board of Selectmen:  Michael Murphy, Gordon Hubbard; 

Williamstown Board of Selectmen: Andy Hogeland, Hugh Daley, Jeffrey Thomas, Ann O’Connor, 
Jane Patton; 

Chris Dodig, Moderator, Town of Lanesborough 
Curtis Elfenbein, Candidate 
Christine Canning Wilson, Candidate  

Others: R Putnam; J. Bergeron; J. Nopper 

I. Meeting begins at 6:00. C Dodig, chairing meeting, explains the appointment
process, and attendance is taken.

II. Mt. Greylock RSD Committee calls meeting to order at 6:08
Williamstown Selectboard calls meeting to order at 6:08, and reads statement on
open meeting law and conduct of meeting by remote participation pursuant to
Governor’s Order; and
Lanesborough Selectboard calls meeting to order at 6:10

III. As a preliminary matter, discussion of having the meeting and vote now, rather than
waiting for newly constituted school committee, including timing under regional
agreement, which sets 30-day time period; Moderator decides to move forward.

IV. Christine Canning Wilson makes a candidate statement, noting her experience and
interest.

V. Curtis Elfenbein makes a candidate statement, noting his experience and interest.
VI. Questioning of the candidates begins with questions from

a. C. Conry re conflict management and resolution;
b. A. Terranova re Ms. Wilson’s candidate statement;
c. S Miller re on pressing issues facing the district;
d. M Murphy, on perceptions of differences between Lanesboro and Williamstown;
e. G Hubbard proposes scenario about parent approaching school committee

member with problem with teacher and asking how they would handle it;

DRAFT



2 
 

f. J Patton notes qualifications of both candidates, asks about approach to 
resolving disputes; 

g. A Hoagland asks about why running now and whether thought about running in 
the Spring; and follow up question to C Canning Wilson about whether her 
candidate statement is consistent with a constructive conciliatory approach; 

h. H Daley first notes concerns about capital expenditures, then asks about 
approach to approaches to diversity, inclusion, and equity;  

i. A. O’Connor asks about athletics fields proposals; 
j. M. Murphy asks questions about approach to budgets.   

 
VII. Moderator moves to voting by roll call;  
 

a. Jamie Art, Elfenbein 
b. Ali Carter, Elfenbein 
c. Christina Conry, Elfenbein 
d. Carrie Greene, Elfenbein 
e. Steve Miller, Canning Wilson 
f. Al Terranova, Elfenbein 
g. Hugh Daley, Elfenbein 
h. Andy Hogeland, Elfenbein 
i. Ann O’Connor, Elfenbein 
j. Jane Patton; Elfenbein 
k. Jeffrey Thomas, Elfenbein 
l. Gordon Hubbard; Elfenbein 
m. Michael Murphy, Elfenbein 

 
Elfenbein is elected. 

 
VIII. Terranova Moves to Adjourn, Miller Seconds; Art, Aye; Carter, Aye; Conry, Aye; 

Greene, Aye; Miller, Aye; Terranova, Aye.  Meeting adjourned at 7:33. 
 

IX. Williamstown and Lanesborough select boards adjourn their meetings. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

DRAFT



L. von Holtz, November 23, 2020 

MOUNT GREYLOCK 
FALL CO-CURRICULAR SUMMARY 

 

Clubs/Organizations 

Echo (28 Members): Students have been working together to keep an online news source 
updated with relevant information for the school community and have published one print 
edition at the end of October. 

Debate Club (11 Members): Student proposed club new to Mount Greylock this fall. Students 
are meeting every other week to prepare for and debate current topics similar to the school 8th 
grade debates. 

Fall Festival of Shakespeare for Seniors (6 Members): Shakespeare and Company has created 
a senior specific group for the fall. Students from all over Berkshire County have been divided 
into groups with a few students from each area school in each group and are meeting virtually a 
few days a week. The goal is to have an event in Tina Packer Playhouse in mid-December. 

Fall Shakespeare Theater (20 Members): Group has been meeting 2-3/week and working on 
short scripts from various Shakespeare Plays.  Students meet once a week in person and once a 
week through zoom. They are hoping to have a virtual performance the week of December 14th. 

Gender Sexuality Alliance: Students are meeting virtually once a week. They are working on a 
few school initiatives. 

MIAA Ambassadors/Student Athletic Advisory: This group of students has created a pen pal 
program between high school and elementary students with similar interests to help develop 
connections and begin a mentoring program. They are also doing a hat-for-a-hat program for the 
holiday season. For each homemade ornament sold, a winter hat will be donated. 

Multicultural Student Union (16 Members): Group meets virtually every three weeks. 
Students have several initiatives in the works including speaker series, art project for a school 
installation, reaching out to similar clubs at other local schools, and potential MG peer to peer 
presentations/discussions around a variety of topics related to diversity and inclusion. 

National Honor Society (21 Current Members): Student who qualified for NHS during the 
2019-20 academic year have been notified and provided with an application to complete to join 
the organization this school year. There were 15 seniors and 40 juniors. There are already 21 
seniors in the organization from last year. 

Register. Educate, Vote (16 Members): Group meets virtually every Monday night. Additional 
meetings were held to discuss the election and share information with the school community. 
The group also ran a mock election for the students at Mount Greylock. 

Students Organizing Change (6 Members): Student meet virtually each week. Group recently 
supported the local food pantry by creating handmade cards to accompany Thanksgiving food 
baskets- and are making a $500 donation to support two-three families for the holidays. Group is 
working on a mask-a-thon fundraiser for over the winter break. Students will receive donations 
for making masks and the masks (and donations) will be given to local shelters. 



L. von Holtz, November 23, 2020 

Student Council: Students have a combined virtual and in-person meeting once a week.  The 
group help elections for position in Class Government and Student Council earlier this year and 
the new officers and members are in place. 

Writing Club (11 Members): The group meets virtually every Monday with Williams College 
leaders to play word games, write original poems/stories, and share their work with each other.  

Yearbook: (13 Members), Students are meeting in a combined in-person and virtually set-up on 
alternating Tuesday and Thursdays. Group has been brainstorming ideas for the yearbook as 
many of the events they normally include will not happen or will be in reduced form. At this 
point the focus is on senior portraits.  Senior parents have also been notified about the process to 
purchase a senior advertisement. 

Youth Environmental Squad: (25 Members), Students are meeting virtually once a week. 
Student organized an outdoor clean up and encouraged students to wear gloves and masks and 
pick up trash in their own neighborhood. Group leaders then collected that trash if needed. There 
were about 12 students that participated in this event. 

 

Fall Athletic Programs 

This fall, Mount Greylock offered: 

*Three Modified Competitive Programs 

Cross Country (Boys & Girls) 
Participated in 6 Races (3 at MG, 1 at Wahconah, 1 at Mount Everett, 1 at Monument) 
Practiced ~4 days a week from September 18th – November 13th 

Golf 
Participated in 9 Matches (4 at Waubeeka, 1 at Greenock, 2 at Wahconah & Wyantenuck) 
Practiced on weekdays (when no competition) from September 18th – November 6th 

 

*Five Practice/Conditioning Programs  
 

  Football – Three week conditioning program (3 sessions each week) 
  Unified Basketball – Six week skills program (1 session each week) 
  Soccer (Boys & Girls) – Approximately 8 week practice program (2-3 sessions each week) 
  Volleyball – Approximately 8 week practice program (2-3 sessions each week) 
 
 

220 Athletes participated in one of the offered Fall Athletic Programs at Mount Greylock 
32 Cross Country (Boys) 
45 Cross Country (Girls) 
11 Golf 
 

14 Football  
15 Unified Basketball  
44 Soccer (Boys) 
31 Soccer (Girls) 
31 Volleyball 
 

A survey was sent to students and families this weekend regarding their fall experience. As of 
Monday morning, 65 students and 126 parents have submitted a response. 



L. von Holtz, November 23, 2020 

WINTER ATHLETIC SEASON PROPOSAL 
 

Start Date for Practices: Monday, December 14th, 2020 
First Possible Contest: January 8th, 2021 

 
Traditional Winter Programs Include: 

• Alpine Ski (Hosted by Taconic), Grade 9-12, No recent participants 
• Basketball, Grade 8-12, Approximately 40 participants  
• Ice Hockey (Hosted by Drury), Grade 8-12, Approximately 5 participants 
• Nordic Ski, Grade 7-12, Approximately 80 participants 
• Swimming (Hosted by Wahconah), Grade 9-12, No recent participants 
• Wrestling (Cooperative Program with Drury, Hoosac & McCann), Grade 7-12, 

Approximately 16 participants 

 
Update for Winter 2020-2021 

• Berkshire County will not be offering Ice Hockey this winter. This is due to lack of 
available facilities and shortage of county teams. Additionally, travel into other counties for 
competitions is discouraged at this time. 
 

• The MIAA has postponed the Wrestling season to the Spring of 2021. 
 

• Mount Greylock will not be sending students to cooperative programs hosted by other 
schools this winter. This means that Alpine Skiing and Swimming will not be offered at 
Mount Greylock this winter. The interest survey sent to students indicated 2 high school 
students interested in Alpine Ski and 0 students interested in Swimming this season. During 
this time when extra precautions and safety is necessary, sending students into another 
school district is not advised. 

 
• Mount Greylock would like to host a Modified Competitive Nordic Ski Program this 

winter. This program will look very different than past programs as all practices will be 
held at Mount Greylock. Students will not be travelling to Prospect for competitions or 
practices this season. There will be restrictions on the number of participants each day. 
Masks will need to be worn for the duration of all activities (practices and contests) and 
students will be reminded to remain distanced from peers frequently. A pod system similar 
to the fall program will be used. Students will train in the same group of 5-10 students for 
the duration of the season. 
 

Berkshire County will likely have 5-6 schools participating in a competitive Nordic Ski 
Program. Races will only include two schools and will likely occur at high school sites on 
Saturday’s. In addition to the EEA Modifications and Guidelines, the MIAA has published 
Nordic specific modifications for practices and contests. 
 

There were 66 students interested in participating based on the survey sent. 
 



L. von Holtz, November 23, 2020 

• Mount Greylock would like to host a Modified Competitive Basketball Program this 
winter. Practices will be held in small groups and roster size will be limited. Masks will 
need to be worn for the duration of all activities (practices and contests) and students will 
be reminded to remain distanced from peers frequently. A pod system similar to the fall 
program will be used. Students will train in the same group of 5-10 students for the 
duration of the season. Students will use an assigned or personal ball whenever possible 
and shared balls will be disinfected regularly. Student participants will be encouraged to 
sanitize their hands multiple times throughout an event. Students will have an assigned seat 
during contests to return to and to keep their gym bag and water bottle.  These seats will be 
at least 6 feet apart.  
 

Berkshire County will likely have 6 Schools beginning on December 14th with the 
possibility of 2-3 more starting after the new year. In addition to the EEA Modifications 
and Guidelines, the MIAA has published Basketball specific modifications for practices 
and contests. 
 

There were 50 students interested in Basketball based on the survey results. However, 16 of 
these students were in Middle School which are not traditionally part of the MG program. 

 
Berkshire County Competition Proposal 
Contest will start on January 8th at the earliest. The first month of the season will be practices 
only and while intra-squad scrimmages will be possible, teams will not work with teams/ 
programs outside their school. 
 
Weekly School Match-Ups have been proposed to limit the number of schools a school competes 
against each week. 

Example: 
Monday:  Mount Greylock Boys Basketball vs. School A 
Tuesday:  Mount Greylock Girls Basketball @ School A 
Thursday:  Mount Greylock Boys Basketball @ School A 
Friday:  Mount Greylock Girls Basketball vs School A 
Saturday:  Mount Greylock Girls/Boys Nordic Ski vs./@ School A 

 

Rationale for Winter Athletic Programs: 

• All events will follow DESE, EEA & MIAA Modifications and Requirements. 
• Events will be planned to ensure the number of students on campus during any period of 

time is appropriate. 
• Practice days and times planned to be considerate of remote/hybrid learning. 
• Programs will allow for athlete development. 
• Programs will provide an opportunity for students to be physical active. 
• Programs will provide an opportunity for distanced social growth. 
• Programs will provide for time away from screens and academic pressure. 
• Programs can help with the Emotional and Mental aspect of student health. 
• The student and parent input from the offered fall programs was incredibly positive. 



 

Basketball 
Winter 2020-2021 

General Information 
 

Every school district/program should consult with their local health department to 

determine which risk level to start this program safely. Continued consultation with the 

local health department should be used to determine when progression to the next risk 

level can be initiated.   
 

Playing sports come with inherent risks (twisted ankles to concussions).  The COVID-19 

pandemic has brought additional risks to group activities/sports.  The Mass Executive 

Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs (EEA) categorizes sports as: “Lower Risk”, 

“Moderate Risk”, “Higher Risk”.  These categories are based on how the sport is 

traditionally played. MIAA Committees have developed these modifications to reduce 

risks associated with COVID-19 using National and State guidelines and input from 

medical specialists.  Playing any sport (even with modified play) will continue to carry 

some risk of acquiring COVID-19;  these modifications were developed to help guide 

schools with requirements and best practices to limit exposure while offering an 

opportunity for interscholastic athletics for those sports approved for EEA Level 3 

participation. Additional information can be found on the EEA website: EEA Youth and 

Amateur Sports Resources & EEA Guidance 
 

This document is to be utilized in compliance with all EEA, DESE and DPH guidelines in 

place. 
 

Learn more about participation in athletics during the pandemic by taking the free 

NFHS online course: “COVID-19 for Coaches and Administrators 
 

Pre-Workout/Pre-Contest Screening: 

Student-athletes, coaches, spectators, and any others associated with the athletic 

program may not attend practices or games if they are isolated for illness or 

quarantined for exposure to infection.   
 

Prior to attending practices or games, athletes and coaches should check their 

temperature. If a student-athlete or a coaching staff member has a temperature of 100 

degrees or above, they should not attend practices or games.  Likewise if they have any 

other symptoms of COVID-19 infection (https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-

ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html), they should not attend practices or games.  

Student-athletes and coaches who have symptoms of COVID-19 infection should test 

and isolate in accordance with DPH guidance.   
 

For students with symptoms who test negative for COVID-19 infection, they may return 

to sport once they are approved to return to school (when afebrile for 24 hours and 

symptomatically improved).   
 

https://www.mass.gov/info-details/executive-office-of-energy-and-environmental-affairs-eea-covid-19-guidance-documents#youth-and-adult-amateur-sports-activities-
https://www.mass.gov/info-details/executive-office-of-energy-and-environmental-affairs-eea-covid-19-guidance-documents#youth-and-adult-amateur-sports-activities-
https://www.mass.gov/doc/safety-standards-for-youth-and-adult-amateur-sports-activities-phase-iii-step-2-effective-11720/download
https://bit.ly/COVID-19NFHSLearn
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html


Student-athletes and coaches who are diagnosed with COVID-19 infection should rest 

and avoid exercise for ten days from symptom onset.  They may return to school once 

they have been afebrile for at least 24 hours and with improvement in their COVID-19 

symptoms, and once ten days have passed since symptoms first appeared (or the date 

of the positive test, if asymptomatic), according to DPH guidelines.  In addition, persons 

with COVID-19 infection need to receive written clearance from their health care 

provider and school administrator/designee to return to sport.  Return to activity should 

be slow and graded.  An example of a graduated return to play protocol can be found at 

this link 
 

Student-athletes, coaches, spectators and any others associated with the athletic 

program who were exposed to COVID-19 must not participate in practices or games 

until their 14-day quarantine is completed and must receive written clearance from 

their school administrator/designee to return to sport. 
 

Cohorts and/or Participants: 

A record should be kept of all individuals present at team activities i.e. – practices, 

practice cohorts, competitions, etc. 
 

Social distancing: 

 Practice – Coaches are responsible for ensuring social distancing (6 feet 

between individuals) is maintained between players as much as possible. This 

includes additional spacing between athletes while stretching, warming up, 

chatting, changing drills, etc. Athletes must maintain spacing, and there should 

be no congregating of athletes while running drills. Workouts, when possible 

could be conducted in ‘pods’ of athletes, with the same 5-10 athletes always 

working out together. Ideally athletes should not move between pods for the 

entire season.  This ensures more limited exposure if someone develops an 

infection. Records should be kept of who is in each group, each day. 
 

 Locker Rooms –Locker rooms and changing areas must remain closed per EEA 

Guidance (EEA Guidance Page 11), except for toilet facilities.  For sport activities 

that occur directly after school, locker rooms may be used for changing only, 

with no more than 10 users at one time and with social distancing (6 feet 

between individuals) and face coverings maintained.  Locker rooms may not be 

used for storage. Facility Operators should ensure that users can abide by 

capacity restrictions and social distancing standards and establish signage and 

visual guidelines. Signage should remind users to limit time spent in enclosed 

area.  If locker rooms are utilized, staggered use based on time and distance is 

recommended.   

 

When possible, students should report to workouts in proper gear and 

immediately return home to shower, clean clothing, and equipment at the end of 

every workout. 
 

 Benches – No benches should be used during practice except for ice hockey 

where facility design has permanent seating. Players’ personal items should be 

separated as referenced below, at least 6 feet apart. Benches should be 

permitted only during games with 6 feet of distancing required between 

participants.  Athletes and coaches should maintain the same seat for the 

duration of the game whenever possible.   
 

https://www.amssm.org/COVID19.php
https://www.mass.gov/doc/safety-standards-for-youth-and-adult-amateur-sports-activities-phase-iii-step-2-effective-11720/download


 Playing Surface Access – Only essential personnel are permitted on the 

practice/competition field. These are defined as athletes, coaches, medical 

personnel/athletic trainers, and officials (competition). All others (i.e. managers, 

photographers, media, etc.) are considered non-essential personnel and are not 

to be on the field of play.   

 

 Personal Items – It is recommended that each athlete bring their own gym bag 

for personal items (see gym bag information below). All personal items should 

remain in the gym bag when not in use. Gym bags should be placed in a 

predetermined area 6 feet apart for the duration of practice. 

 

 Huddles – Social distancing (6 feet between individuals) must be maintained, 

and face coverings utilized at all times. Communicating with smaller groups is 

preferred.  Huddles may not occur in locker rooms.  

 

 Team Handshakes – Athletes shall NOT exchange handshakes before, during or 

following practices and competitions.  Some MIAA sport specific modifications 

suggest sportsmanship recognition practices which replace handshakes. 

 

 Spectators – Spectators must practice social distancing (6 feet between 

individuals) between different household units and accept personal 

responsibility for public health guidelines. The number of spectators is 

determined in compliance with EEA, DESE and DPH guidelines. 

 

 Media – All social distancing and hygiene guidelines for spectators must be 

followed by media members planning to attend games. Media members should 

contact host school administrators prior to arriving at games to plan appropriate 

entry and available workspace 

 

 Travel – Student-athletes, coaches, spectators, and any others associated with 

the athletic program (if not from the same household) are required to wear face 

coverings during travel to and from game locations.  This is particularly 

important for car pool and bus situations. 
 

Practice and Game Protocols: 

 Masks/Face Coverings – Athletes are required to wear cloth face 

coverings/masks per EEA guidelines, including covering both the nose and 

mouth at all times. Gaiters are acceptable, if permitted by local/school policy.  

Masks with valves or filters are not permitted. 

 

Most effective fabrics for cloth masks are: 

 Tightly woven fabrics, such as cotton and cotton blends 

 Breathable 

 Two or three layers 

Less effective fabrics for cloth masks are: 

 Loosely woven fabrics, such as loose knit fabrics 

 Difficult to breathe through (like plastic or leather) 

 Single layer      

 



Mask breaks may be taken for drinking, and when needed for breathing 

comfort.  Mask breaks may only be taken when greater than 6 feet of distance 

can be maintained from all others. 

 

All athletes, especially those that use mouthpieces, should prepare to have 

extra face coverings available.  Athletes who have their masks become damp 

should change regularly.   Masks should be exchanged when damp or soiled.  

Caution should be exercised when replacing a mask if hands are soiled or dirty. 

All individuals that are unable to wear a face covering due to a medical 

condition or disability must provide a medical note to the school 

administrator/designee excusing the player from wearing a mask.  This note 

must always be in the possession of the head coach and available to the 

opposing head coach and/or game officials upon request.  The head coach is 

the only participant that can submit documented permission of “non-mask” 

participation.  Student-athletes cannot discuss or present non-mask permission 

to an official.  It is recommended that athletic directors work to advise officials 

assignors in advance of a contest if their teams have non-mask participants. 

 

It is the responsibility of the head coach to monitor and ensure that all players 

are wearing face coverings.  Game administrators, home athletic director, or 

other designee may also assist in monitoring this.   

 

Coaches and officials are also required to wear face coverings.  Spectators, 

workers, and others are also required to wear face coverings and are expected 

to follow social distancing guidelines (6 feet between individuals).   

 

 Player habits – Coaches should work to break old habits and create new ones to 

minimize the spread of the virus. Spitting, nose clearing on the field, licking 

fingers, and spitting on gloves during practices and competitions is not 

permitted. The habit of minimizing any touching of the face and covering the 

cough should be practiced. 

 

Given that indoor conditions and ventilation/airflow impact the playing of indoor 

sports, it is recommended that indoor participants and all in attendance work to 

refrain from active yelling due to the increased opportunity for droplet 

transmission. Coaches and game administrators are encouraged to monitor this 

and remind participants to eliminate any unnecessary shouting. 

   

 Interaction with Officials – Coaches must follow social distancing guidelines (6 

feet between individuals) when interacting with an official or any other 

individual. Conversations can occur at a distance.  Athletes should not approach 

a referee closer than 6 feet at any time. 

 

 Hand sanitizer and/or sanitizing wipes – Athletes, coaches, and officials are 

encouraged to provide their own hand sanitizer (at least 60% alcohol) and/or 

sanitizing wipes and use them frequently – including prior to taking the field and 

upon return to the sideline. Additionally, it is emphasized to avoid touching the 

face throughout practice and competition. 

 

 Ventilation should be optimized: EEA Guidance Page 14 

 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/safety-standards-for-youth-and-adult-amateur-sports-activities-phase-iii-step-2-effective-11720/download


 Pre-Game Introductions and Preparation – If pre-game meetings are necessary, 

they should be held with limited team representation – a single coach, single 

captain, etc.  At the pregame meeting, all participants are required to wear face 

coverings and to socially distance from all participants 

 

If a school chooses to do introductions, players will take their position on the 

field prior to being introduced.  Introductions are suggested to be limited or 

eliminated to decrease time of athletes on the competition field.   

 

The National Anthem may be played before competition.  Appropriate social 

distancing (6 feet between individuals) must be maintained by teams and all 

personnel during the National Anthem.  Singing the National Anthem indoors 

should not be permitted. 

 

Indoor musical performances at interscholastic athletic events are not are 

permitted. 

 

 Ball Retrievers – Ball retrievers for any sport ARE NOT permitted.  See sport 

specific modifications for extra ball placement procedures. 

 

 Post-Game Procedures – Refer to Team Handshakes in this guidance.  

Recognition of the other team, coaches and/or officials should be done from a 

distance greater than 6 feet and should not delay departure from the 

competition venue.  Teams and groups of players should maintain social 

distancing (6 feet between individuals) and/or staggering departure times at the 

conclusion of the contest. 
 

Equipment: 

 General Equipment – There should be no shared athletic equipment unless 

required by the sport rules, i.e. – one basketball is used during competition and 

must be used by all players. Individual sport modifications should be followed 

for planned and periodic disinfecting.  Any equipment that is used for practice 

should be cleaned and disinfected prior to and immediately following practice. 

Only one individual should handle the set-up and break-down of equipment on 

any given day (i.e. goals, cones, etc.). 

 

 Balls - For moderate and high-risk sports - Each player should bring their own 

ball or use the same school-issued ball during practice. Skill training, 

conditioning, agility, etc. can be done with the one player/one ball concept.  

Balls must be sanitized before and after each practice/game.  Sport specific 

modifications also list other ball cleaning practices during competition. 

 

 Personal Items – Shoes, clothing, towels, and other personal items must not be 

shared among athletes. Any items that are not currently being worn/used 

should be stored inside a personal gym bag. Gym bags should be placed in a 

predetermined area 6 feet apart for the duration of practice/competition. 
 

Hydration: 

 All students must bring their own water bottle. Water bottles cannot be shared.  

Student-athletes should bring enough water for the entire game. 
 



 Bench water may be provided by the facility host, but the visiting 

team/participants should supply their own coolers unless agreed upon by the 

facility host. If used, water coolers shall be sanitized prior to use and frequently 

during the contest and disposable one-time-use cups shall be utilized. 
 

 Hydration stations (water cows, water trough, water fountains, etc.) should NOT 

be utilized.  If water coolers or other large volume water container is utilized, it 

can only be accessed by a “designated” refill person with proper PPE. 
 

 Water fountains are to be used as refill stations ONLY. 
 

COVID-19 Coach:  

Schools should designate a coach to be responsible for responding to COVID-19 

concerns. 
 

All coaches, staff, officials, and families should know who this person is and how to 

contact them. 
 

All athletic directors/designee must follow established EEA guidelines for program 

and/or game management. 
 

Train coaches, officials, and staff on all safety protocols. Conduct training virtually and 

ensure that social distancing (6 feet between individuals) is maintained during training. 

(NFHS COVID-19 FREE Course) 
 

Coaches, athletes, officials, and spectators are required to cooperate with the local 

board of health whenever requested. 
 

Gym Bag – Supplies recommended for your personal gym bag: 

 Reusable face coverings/masks – The mask/face covering must be worn at all 

times.  Sport specific modification may have further guidance for face coverings.  

All participants should have multiple back-up face coverings. 
 

 Warm-up clothing, electronic devices, and other personal items that are used by 

the athlete, prior to practice/competition, must be placed back in the gym bag 

before practice/competition begins. 
 

 Athletes are recommended to always have a personal bottle of hand sanitizer 

available.  There will be less chance of possible cross contamination and less 

time standing around waiting to use a shared hand sanitizer.  Be sure to have 

this inside a sealable bag, in case it leaks. This will be used when you enter and 

exit the practice/competition site, and at other necessary times in between. 
 

 Athletes are recommended to have disinfectant wipes for personal use. When 

using a restroom area, it is best to disinfect any surface that may be touched, 

before and after using the facilities. 
 

 Athletic braces, tape, inhalers, or any other sports-medical item used before, 

during or after practice/meets should be stored in a personal gym bag when not 

in use. 
 

 Additional shoes should also be stored in a separate compartment or bag inside 

a gym bag to prevent possible cross contamination with other items in the gym 

bag. 
 

 Any other item that is deemed necessary for practice or competition must be 

stored in the gym bag when it is not being used. 



Basketball Specific Modifications 

Pre-Game Protocol 

 Pre-Game Meeting 

o Limited to one official and a single captain from each team. 

o Participants stand on the center circle on each side of the division line. All 

individuals maintain a social distance of 6 feet or greater at the center circle.  

o No handshakes prior to and following the Pre-Game Meeting. 

 Starting Lineups/National Anthem 

o Starting lineups are announced only – Players and coaches will refrain from 

high fives, handshake lines, and other physical contact with teammates, 

opposing players, coaches, officials, and fans. 

 

Game Modifications 

 Masks: Mandatory facial coverings per EEA document page 6 

o The host school is required to setup designated areas for students from 

each team to take mask breaks when coming off the court. 

o If a player is in violation of the mandatory mask rule, the referee has the 

authority to send the player off the court. 

 Process Between Quarters 

o Halftime will be eliminated. 

o The length of time between quarters will be extended to 2:30. 

o The game ball will be changed at the end of each quarter. 

 Timeouts 

o Teams are responsible to run their timeout meetings following socially 

distanced protocols. 

o The length of timeouts will be increased to 1:15 to provide extra time for 

sanitizing and appropriate social distancing. 

 Player Interaction 

o Players should refrain from picking up another player by hand if a player has 

fallen to the court surface. (Unless deemed necessary to help player off 

court due to injury). 

o Players will refrain from huddling on court as a team prior to, during or 

following free throws or other game situations. 

o Players will refrain from any hand touching (high fives, handshakes) during 

substitutions. 

o The postgame handshake is suspended. See MIAA Board of Directors 

recommendation. 

 Roster and Participation Limits 

o Game day roster cannot exceed 15 players (active or injured) as long as 

teams can adequately social distance.  

o No more than 3 coaches will be allowed on the bench at any time 

o A maximum of 18 individuals (including players and coaches) are allowed on 

the bench 

o The six-quarter rule (MIAA Handbook 66.7.2) will be suspended for this 

season. 

o The use of swing players (i.e. Freshman/JV or JV/Varsity) is strongly 

discouraged and should only be utilized in situations to sustain a program. 

 Game Balls 

o The home team is required to provide at least 4 game balls. 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/safety-standards-for-youth-and-adult-amateur-sports-activities-phase-iii-step-2-effective-11720/download


o Basketballs will be wiped with disinfectant at the end of each period. A 

disinfected or new game ball will be used to start each quarter and overtime. 

o The visiting team is responsible for providing their own basketballs for 

warmups. 

 

Game Modifications/Points of Emphasis 

 Jump Ball 

o The jump ball will be eliminated to start the game and replaced with a throw-

in at the division line. 

o A coin toss will be used (visiting team calls) to determine which team is 

awarded the ball to start the game. The alternating possession arrow will be 

set for the opposing team. 

o Note – the team that begins the game on defense will retain the A-P arrow 

even if they secure possession on the initial throw-in. 

o To start an overtime period, a coin toss will be used (visiting team calls) to 

determine which team is awarded the ball. The A-P arrow will be set to the 

opposing team in the same manner as to start the game. 

 Substitution Process 

o One player reports to the scorer’s table when a team intends to substitute. 

Multiple substitutions can be made. When the horn sounds, players must 

enter through the scorer’s table and utilize hand sanitizer.  

o Players must use hand sanitizer when entering or exiting the court at any 

time (i.e. before game, during substitutions, between quarters, after game) 

 Closely Guarded/5 Seconds 

o To minimize the amount of time that opponents are face to face, officials will 

emphasize NFHS Rule 9-10-1-a, “A player shall not, while closely guarded: A. 

In his/her frontcourt, hold the ball for five seconds or dribble the ball for five 

seconds. B. In his/her frontcourt, control the ball for five seconds in an area 

enclosed by screening teammate.” 

 Freedom of Movement 

o Point of emphasis is to enforce the rule that defenders will not physically 

impede the progress of offensive players (off the ball; see reference NFHS 

Rules 4-24, 4-26, 4-37 and 10-7). 

 Free Throw Situations 

o To limit congestion and contact, free throw lanes will be limited to four 

players. 

o On two/three shot fouls, free throw lanes will remain empty and players can 

only enter lanes prior to the final attempt. 

o For one-and-one and single free throw attempts, all four players may position 

themselves on the first attempt. 

 Sideline Out of Bounds Plays 

o To eliminate congestion and contact under the basket during dead ball 

situations, offensive plays in the frontcourt will be inbounded at the foul line 

extended (not under the basket/end line). 

 End of Game Foul 

o In order to avoid unnecessary contact while managing time at the end of the 

game, a team representative will notify the official if they are planning to foul 

a player receiving the inbounds pass; once the defensive team lightly tags 

the receiving offensive player the official will stop the play and administer a 

foul. 



 Quick whistle for a loose ball/tie up 

o Point of emphasis - officials will quickly stop play/whistle during a loose 

ball/tie up between players in order to limit close contact. 

 Inbound Play/Throw-In 

o On all throw-in/inbound plays, the defender will maintain a distance of 6 feet 

from the player inbounding the ball. 

 

Team Benches 

 The home team/host school is responsible for providing socially distanced 

bench areas. 

o Additional chairs or rows may be added when possible to allow bench 

personnel and players to observe social distancing of 6 feet or greater. 

o Players and coaches are required to be assigned a specific seat on the 

bench for the duration of the contest where feasible. In instances where 

assigned seating is not possible, the person exiting the court is required to 

disinfect the seat. 

o It is the responsibility of the host school to provide disinfectant and 

disinfecting wipes for each team. 

o Consider seating fans opposite of team benches and separated from one 

another to promote social distancing. 

o If spectator seating is available behind team benches, it must be separated 

by at least 20 feet. 

o The host school is required to setup designated areas for students from 

each team to take mask breaks when coming off the court. 

 All players must bring their own water bottles which must not be shared. 

 Follow school protocols to clean/disinfect bench area between games. 

 All non-uniformed team members who are not essential to game management 

shall be seated in the bleachers or general seating and socially distanced from 

other groups. 

 

Game Officials 

 Must wear a mask at all times per EEA document page 6. 

 Electronic whistles/artificial noisemakers are required. 

 Throw-in: Official may stand 6 feet or greater away from player making the 

throw-in and bounce the ball to that player on a front court throw-in. 

 Free Throw Administration: The lead official shall stand on the end line and 

bounce the ball to the free thrower. 

 If a player is in violation of the mandatory mask rule, the official has the 

authority to send the player off the court. 

 Address broken/damaged masks when the play advantage has subsided 

(similar to how injuries are handled). 

 Must arrive at the facility dressed in uniform per EEA document page 12. 

 Must bring their own water bottles. 

 

Scorer’s Table 

 Personnel must be socially distanced and are required to wear masks. 

(Announcer, timer, shot clock, scorer, etc.) 

 Home team/host school provides hand sanitizer for each team at the scorer’s 

table and disposable PPE. 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/safety-standards-for-youth-and-adult-amateur-sports-activities-phase-iii-step-2-effective-11720/download
https://www.mass.gov/doc/safety-standards-for-youth-and-adult-amateur-sports-activities-phase-iii-step-2-effective-11720/download


 Limit seats at the table to essential personnel which includes home team scorer 

and timer with a recommended distance of 6 feet or greater between 

individuals. Other personnel (visiting scorer, statisticians, media, etc.) may not 

be deemed essential personnel and consider an alternate location for them.  

 

Game Management 

 Spectators: Reference spectator limitations per EEA Document page 7. 

o The home team administrator will keep spectator attendance records. 

 Cheerleaders 

o To limit the number of people on the sidelines during games, cheerleaders 

are not permitted. 

 Locker Rooms 

o Locker rooms are closed per EEA Document page 10. 

 Media 

o Location determined by host school, must wear mask and follow all social 

distancing guidelines for spectators. Advance notification to host school 

administration is required. 

 Post-Game 

o Adequate time should be provided between games to allow for social 

distancing of teams and spectators during entry/exit in multi-team and multi-

game settings.  

 Between games 

o Cleaning of the court, benches, scorer’s table and playing surface areas 

takes place. 

 Concessions 

o Concessions are not allowed for basketball games. 

 

Training/Practice 

 Practices are limited to small group trainings in accordance with current EEA 

guidelines. 

 All cohorts must be more than 14 feet apart on the playing surface. 

 Players cannot share any personal equipment – shoes, towels, water bottles, 

etc. 

 Basketballs and other instructional equipment used for warm ups/practices 

must be cleaned before storing for next game/practice. 

 

Other Considerations 

 Host schools are encouraged to optimize air exchange and/or filtration where 

possible such as opening windows. 

 Floor markings for desks/classroom settings can remain on the court. 

 To the extent possible, it is recommended that schools play only one opponent 

per week (home/away). 

 Virtual or live stream broadcast options are encouraged (i.e. NFHSNetwork.com) 

 Online ticket sales/paperless tickets should be utilized whenever possible to 

limit the handling of cash. 

 

https://www.mass.gov/doc/safety-standards-for-youth-and-adult-amateur-sports-activities-phase-iii-step-2-effective-11720/download
https://www.mass.gov/doc/safety-standards-for-youth-and-adult-amateur-sports-activities-phase-iii-step-2-effective-11720/download
https://www.mass.gov/doc/safety-standards-for-youth-and-adult-amateur-sports-activities-phase-iii-step-2-effective-11720/download
https://www.mass.gov/doc/safety-standards-for-youth-and-adult-amateur-sports-activities-phase-iii-step-2-effective-11720/download


Nordic Ski Specific Modifications 

When scheduling meets, leagues and/or schools are responsible for becoming familiar 

with and abiding by all Covid-19 regulations and protocols put into place by the host 

site.   

 

General Requirements 

 Masks or gaiters must be worn at all times. 

 All social distancing protocols must be followed (6 feet between athletes)  

 Spectator attendance will follow EEA guidelines with consideration for venue, 

school, and league policies. 

 The course may be previewed before the start of the event.  

 

Pre-Practice/ Pre-Contest 

 Practice Pods 

o Workouts should be conducted in pods of students, with the same 5-10 

students always working out together. 

 Personnel 

o Only essential personnel are permitted on the practice area and competition 

area each day (i.e. athletes, coaches, medical personnel/athletic trainer, 

officials, and timers).  

o All others (managers, photographers, media, spectators, etc.…) are 

considered non-essential personnel and are not to be in the starting area, 

finish line or practice area. 

 

Event Protocols 

 Considering the unique nature of Nordic Skiing, Race Directors, venues, and 

leagues will format races with strong consideration for the health and well-being 

of the participants. 

 Arrival 

o Schools will arrive to the host site in staggered manner 

o Competitors must arrive dressed and equipment must be ready for 

competition. 

 Warming Area 

o The skier’s method of transportation will become their warming area 

 Equipment Prep 

o Skis must be waxed prior to arrival.  

o Touch ups may be done on site in an area that allows for social distancing 

and only 2 individuals allowed in this area at one time.  

 Warm-Up Areas 

o Designated warm up areas must be provided for each team to ensure social 

distancing before the meet. 

 Start Line 

o Staggered starts in smaller groups are required. Waves will be comprised of 

skiers from the same school. 

o Skiers are to be spaced out 6 feet apart  

o Spacing between schools must be 14 feet  

o Number of skiers at the start will be determined by the site and size of the 

starting line 

o Schools should use previously established cohorts from practice sessions 



o A minimum of three minute spacing must be allotted between each wave, 

however spacing time will be determined by the meet director/site manager 

and size of the course to maintain social distancing. 

 Finish Line 

o The host site and host school will determine the best way complete scoring, 

keeping socially distancing in mind.  

o Consideration should be given to providing additional volunteers near the 

finish line to help disperse athletes who have just completed their race. 

o Skiers must leave immediately following their finish.  

o Each race must be complete prior to the start of the next race. 

 

Post-Workout/Post-Contest 

 Warm Down Areas 

o Designated warm down areas must be provided for each team to ensure 

social distancing of 6 feet after the meet. 

 Race Results  

o Consideration should be given to providing race results virtually 

 End of Practice/End of Race 

o Athletes/teams must immediately disperse upon the conclusion of practice 

and meets.  

 

   

 

 

http://www.miaa.net/
https://www.instagram.com/miaa033/
https://twitter.com/MIAA033


Mount Greylock Regional School District 
Retirees 

 
 
 

Maureen Jennings 
MGRS Cafeteria Kitchen Assistant 

Retired January 22, 2020 
26 years of service 

 
 
 
 

         Linda Wlodyka  
MGRS Paraprofessional 

Retired November 13, 2020 
33 years of service 

 
 
 

             Ellen Kaiser   
MGRS  Social Studies Teacher  

Retiring December 5, 2020  
18 years of service 

 
 
 



Snow Day Plan for 20-21 School Year 
 
Covid-19 has provided us the opportunity to approach teaching and learning in new 
ways, creating significant challenges and significant opportunities. Among those 
opportunities is the chance to use snow days as remote instructional days. Remote 
instruction provides the opportunity for real teaching and learning to happen on these 
days. We recommend using this opportunity to promote continuity of teaching and 
learning on snow days. We believe that remote learning during the 2020-2021 school 
year has improved dramatically since the early model from last Spring and that Remote 
Learning Days offer more educational value than days deep into June. 
 
However, some families and educators alike have expressed interest in maintaining at 
least some traditional snow days, as these days can be an opportunity for fun and 
recreation with friends and family. 
 
The MGRSD administration would like to follow this plan to address the opportunity 
before us and honor the desire to maintain some winter-traditions that the community 
values. 
 

● The current school calendar (​https://www.wlschools.org/page.cfm?p=934​) has 
the year ending on Wednesday, June 16, if there are no snow days.  

● The school calendar indicates that the next five school days are snow day 
make up days for a potential end date of June 23 

● We suggest that we make use of ​Remote Learning Days​ for every snow day 
through to Friday, February 19 (this is the Friday ending February Break--and 
could provide the potential to break up what is always a long march through 
March) 

● A widespread power outage would force a ​Remote Learning Day​ to be a 
traditional snow day with the day off of school. 

● The next two snow days after February 19 will be actual, traditional no school 
snow days. This would move the final day of school to Friday, June 18, 2020, 
and keep the last day of school within the same work-week as the current end 
date. 

● Any additional snow days will be, if possible (given no widespread power- 
outages or other issues that would preclude remote teaching and learning) 
Remote Learning Days for the rest of the year. 

● In the event of a day that would normally be treated as a two-hour delay day, we 
will use a ​Remote Learning Day ​for that day. 

 
 

https://www.wlschools.org/page.cfm?p=934


 
 
 
 
In Summary: 
 

● Any weather-related day off between now and February 19 will be a Remote 
Learning Day (in case of widespread power outages, the day will be a regular 
snow day). 

● The first two weather-related days off after February 19 will be traditional 
no-school-snow-days. 

● There will be no two-hour delays this school year--these days will be Remote 
Learning Days (in case of widespread power outages, the day will be a regular 
snow day). 

● We can revisit this as needed. 
 



MGL 71 Section 16A: Regional district school committee; selection, powers and duties 
of officers; signing of payroll and accounts payable warrants; audits  
Section 16A. The powers, duties and liabilities of a regional school district shall be vested in and exercised by 
a regional district school committee organized in accordance with the agreement. The committee shall choose 
a chairman and vice chairman by ballot from its membership. The vice chairman shall, in the absence of the 
chairman, exercise the powers and perform the duties of said chairman. It shall appoint a secretary and a 
treasurer who may be the same person, but who need not be members of said committee. The treasurer shall 
receive and take charge of all money belonging to the district, and shall pay any bill of the district which shall 
have been approved by the committee. The committee may appoint an assistant treasurer who need not be a 
member of the committee, and who shall, in the absence of the treasurer, perform his duties and shall have the 
powers and be subject to the requirements and penalties applicable to him. The treasurer and assistant treasurer 
shall be persons of ability and experience and may, by vote of the committee, be compensated for their 
services. A treasurer of a member municipality of the district shall be eligible for appointment as treasurer or 
assistant treasurer. The treasurer and assistant treasurer of the district shall be subject to sections 35 and 109A 
of chapter 41, to the extent applicable. A business manager, assistant superintendent for business or employee 
with title of similar import with responsibilities similar to those of a town accountant shall be subject to section 
52 of said chapter 41 and shall not hold the office of treasurer or assistant treasurer or hold any responsibilities 
for the receipt or disbursement of money. If the office of secretary is vacant or if the secretary is absent or is 
unable to perform his duties because of disability, the committee may appoint a temporary secretary to hold 
such office and exercise the powers and perform the duties thereof until a secretary is duly appointed or the 
secretary who was disabled or absent resumes his duties. The committee may appoint a school building 
committee which shall have such powers and duties relative to the construction, reconstruction, remodeling, 
repair, expansion or equipping of school buildings or facilities as the committee determines.  

The regional school committee may designate any 1 of its members for the purpose of signing payroll warrants 
and accounts payable warrants to allow for the release of checks; provided, however, that the member shall 
make available to the board, at its next meeting, a record of such actions. This provision shall not limit the 
responsibility of each member of the board in the event of a noncompliance with this section.  

The committee shall solicit proposals and contract with an independent certified public accountant to perform 
an annual financial audit and make management recommendations, and shall receive the audit report in public 
session. Copies of the audit shall be provided within 10 days to the director of accounts and to the board of 
selectmen, town manager, mayor or city manager, as the case may be, in each member municipality.  

 



 
MGL 71 Section 16A: Regional district school committee; selection, powers and duties 
of officers; signing of payroll and accounts payable warrants; audits  
 
Section 16A. The powers, duties and liabilities of a regional school district shall be vested in and 
exercised by a regional district school committee organized in accordance with the agreement. 
The committee shall choose a chairman and vice chairman by ballot from its membership. The 
vice chairman shall, in the absence of the chairman, exercise the powers and perform the duties 
of said chairman. It shall appoint a secretary and a treasurer who may be the same person, but 
who need not be members of said committee. The treasurer shall receive and take charge of all 
money belonging to the district, and shall pay any bill of the district which shall have been 
approved by the committee. The committee may appoint an assistant treasurer who need not be a 
member of the committee, and who shall, in the absence of the treasurer, perform his duties and 
shall have the powers and be subject to the requirements and penalties applicable to him. The 
treasurer and assistant treasurer shall be persons of ability and experience and may, by vote of 
the committee, be compensated for their services. A treasurer of a member municipality of the 
district shall be eligible for appointment as treasurer or assistant treasurer. The treasurer and 
assistant treasurer of the district shall be subject to sections 35 and 109A of chapter 41, to the 
extent applicable. A business manager, assistant superintendent for business or employee with 
title of similar import with responsibilities similar to those of a town accountant shall be subject 
to section 52 of said chapter 41 and shall not hold the office of treasurer or assistant treasurer or 
hold any responsibilities for the receipt or disbursement of money. If the office of secretary is 
vacant or if the secretary is absent or is unable to perform his duties because of disability, the 
committee may appoint a temporary secretary to hold such office and exercise the powers and 
perform the duties thereof until a secretary is duly appointed or the secretary who was disabled 
or absent resumes his duties. The committee may appoint a school building committee which 
shall have such powers and duties relative to the construction, reconstruction, remodeling, repair, 
expansion or equipping of school buildings or facilities as the committee determines.  
The regional school committee may designate any 1 of its members for the purpose of signing 
payroll warrants and accounts payable warrants to allow for the release of checks; provided, 
however, that the member shall make available to the board, at its next meeting, a record of such 
actions. This provision shall not limit the responsibility of each member of the board in the event 
of a noncompliance with this section.  
The committee shall solicit proposals and contract with an independent certified public 
accountant to perform an annual financial audit and make management recommendations, and 
shall receive the audit report in public session. Copies of the audit shall be provided within 10 
days to the director of accounts and to the board of selectmen, town manager, mayor or city 
manager, as the case may be, in each member municipality. 













































































































































































































DN





1 
 

                                 Mount Greylock Regional School District 
1781 Cold Spring Road 

Williamstown, MA 01267 
413-458-9582 

                                                                    FAX (413) 458-9581 
     www.mgrhs.org 

 

                  Mt. Greylock Regional Building Committee Membership 
As of November 23, 2020 

 
Designation Name/Title Address Phone Voting Member? 
SBC member who is 
MCPPO pending 

Joseph Bergeron 1781 Cold Spring Rd 
Williamstown,MA 
01267 (w) 

413-458-9582 x.4005 
(w) 

Yes 
 

Local Chief 
Executive Officer 

Jason McCandless, 
Building Committee Chair 

1781 Cold Spring Rd 
Williamstown, MA 
01267 (w) 

413-458-9582 
x.4000(w) 

Yes 

Local Budget 
Official or member 
of Local Finance 
Committee 

Stephen Wentworth, 
Lanesborough Finance 
Committee 

1325 Churchill St. 
Lanesborough, MA 
01237 

413-443-3278 Yes 
 

Town 
Admin/Manager  
or equivalent 
position 

Hugh Daley, 
Williamstown Selectman 

106 Southworth St 
Williamstown, MA 
01267 

413-652-1788 Yes 
 

School Committee 
member(min of one) 

Steven Miller 16 John St 
Williamstown, MA 
01267 

617-835-3982 Yes 
 
 

School Committee 
member 

Michelle Johnson 130 Prospect St. 
Lanesborough, MA 
01237 

413-281-9188 Yes 

School Committee 
member 

Curtis Elfenbein 
 
 

34 Summer St/PO Box 
777 
Lanesborough, MA 
01237 

413-358-1044 Yes 

School Committee 
member 

Carrie Greene 229 Bridges Rd. 
Williamstown,MA 
01267 

413-262-9694 Yes 
 

School Committee 
member 
 

Christina Conry 98 Silver St 
Lanesborough, MA 
01237 

508-243-6612 Yes 

School Committee 
member 

José Constantine 
 
 

261 Pine Cobble Rd. 
Williamstown, MA 
01267 

413-662-9109 Yes 

School Committee 
Member 

Julia Bowen 465 Stratton Rd. 
Williamstown, MA 
01267 

413-441-5625 Yes 

Superintendent of 
Schools 
 
 
 

Jason McCandless 1781 Cold Spring Rd 
Williamstown, MA 
01267 (w) 

413-458-9582 x.4000 
(w) 

NA 

 
 
 

http://www.mgrhs.org/


2 
 

 
 
 

Mt. Greylock Regional School District  
School Building Committee Membership, cont. 

  
 
 

Designation Name/Title Address Phone Voting Member? 
Local Official 
responsible for 
Building Maintenance 

Tim Sears, 
Director of Buildings 
and Grounds 

1781 Cold Spring Rd 
Williamstown, MA 
01267 (w) 

413-458-9582 x.1231 
(w) 

Yes 
 
 

Representative of 
Office authorized by 
law to construct school 
(i.e. signing documents) 

Jason McCandless 1781 Cold Spring Rd 
Williamstown, MA 
01267 (w) 

413-458-9582 x.4000 
(w) 

NA 

School Principal Jacob Schutz, 
Principal, Mt. Greylock 
Regional School 

1781 Cold Spring Rd 
Williamstown, MA 
01267 (w) 

413-458-9582 x.1013 
(w) 
 

Yes 

     
 





Request for Payments

Date: 11/23/2020

Fund:  Williams College Gift to MGRS 

Total: ($ 149,866.62)  

Individual Payments Detail:

Vendor  Amount 
DJ Tierney ($ 122,831.98)  
Perkins Eastman ($ 23,881.60)    
CME Associates ($ 3,153.04)      

The funds were approved for disbursement by the MGRSD School Committee on 11/23/2020

Perkins Eastman Vendor Details
65011.00.0 - 21 ($ 2,809.60)      
65011.00.0 - 27 ($ 14,048.00)    
65011.00.0 - 28 ($ 7,024.00)      

** Note: Perkins Eastman invoice 65011.00.0-23, $2,809.60 was approved for payment on 10/8, but later 
identified as a duplicate and not paid (again). 65011.00.0 - 21 is the invoice that should have been paid at 
that time and is here now for payment

_____________________________________________
Joseph Bergeron
Business Administrator



For billing questions please contact:

Megan Carey, Office Manager

CME Albany Branch

E-Mail: mcarey@cmeassociates.com

Phone: 518.432.5820

Fax: 518.432.5823

INVOICE NO.: 75001

Re: Special Inspection and Structural Testing Services

Mt. Greylock RSD - Administration Building

Mt. Greylock Regional School District Payment Request No. 4

1781 Cold Spring Road CME Project No.: 40420-06

Williamstown, MA 01267

Attn:  Kim Grady

kgrady@williamstownelementary.org

Gentlepeople:

 

Description of Services Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Price

2 Day $320.00 $640.00

Sieve Analysis with #200 Wash 1 Test $53.00 $53.00

Modified Proctor Test 1 Test $85.00 $85.00

Nuclear Density Gauge 2 Visit $30.00 $60.00

Concrete/Masonry Field Testing Technician (4 to 8 hours) 1 Day $320.00 $320.00

Laboratory Test of 6x12 Cylinder in Compression 8 Cylinder $9.00 $72.00

ICC Inspector or Materials Specialist 8 Hour $55.00 $440.00

Concrete Slab Relative Humidity Sensor 7 Sensor $50.00 $350.00

Specimen Pick-Up Service 6 Hour $35.00 $210.00

Project Manager 2.5 Hour $100.00 $250.00

Vehicle Mileage 560 Mile $0.69 $386.40

1 $286.64

$3,153.04

Please remit and make check payable to:

CME Associates, Inc.
P.O. Box 5490

Syracuse, NY 13220

 $9,107.01

9/11/20 $3,153.04

$12,260.05 

To make a payment using Visa or MasterCard

please contact A/R at 315.437.0050

Transaction Fees Apply

September 11, 2020

Administrative and Reporting Fee

Soil Testing Technician (Troxler Certified) (4 to 8 hours)

   10% of Total Invoice 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE THIS INVOICE…

Account Summary

Previously Invoiced

Invoiced to Date

This Invoice

This is our Invoice for services rendered and given on the attached Itemized Listing on the above referenced 
project in accordance with CME Proposal/Agreement No.: 06.1801, executed January 2, 2020.  This Invoice is due 
Net 30 days of Date of Invoice. Payment received after October 12, 2020 will incur FINANCE CHARGES.  Please 
promptly review and process this Invoice for payment.

A New York State Certified Woman Owned Business Enterprise (WBE)

mailto:kgrady@williamstownelementary.org


Soil

Sieve 

Analysis Modified Nuclear

Concrete/ 

Masonry

Laboratory 

Test of 6x12

ICC 

Inspector or

Concrete Slab 

Relative Specimen

Testing with #200 Proctor Density Field Testing Cylinder in Materials Humidity Pick-Up Project

Date Report No.: Technician Wash Test Gauge Technician Compression Specialist Sensor Service Manager Travel

2020 40420 (day) (test) (test) (visit) (day) (cylinder) (hour) (sensor) (hour) (hour) (mile)

28-Jul S06 1 1 0.5 80

29-Jul SPU, *S07 1 1 2 80

30-Jul S09 1 1 0.5 80

31-Jul,

03-Aug N01 8 7 1.0 80

1-Aug CPU 2 80

3-Aug C16 1 8 0.5 80

4-Aug CPU 2 80

2 1 1 2 1 8 8 7 6 2.5 560

Days Test Test Visits Day Cylinders Hours Sensors Hours Hours Miles

*S07 - Denotes Laboratory Test No. ALS-2086

TOTALS:

ITEMIZED LISTING FOR INVOICE NO.: 75001



Mt Greylock Regional School
Capital Gift Project
1781 Cold Spring Rd
Williamstown, MA  01267

April 14, 2020
Invoice No: 65011.00.0 - 21

Project 65011.00.0 Mt. Greylock Admin and Athletic Upgrades

Email invoices to: Kimberley - kgrady@williamstownelementary.org
Professional Services from March 1, 2020 to March 31, 2020
Fee

Billing Phase Fee
%

Comp Earned
Previous

Billing
Current
Billing

Schematics 39,800.00 100.00 39,800.00 39,800.00 0.00
Design Development 33,120.00 100.00 33,120.00 33,120.00 0.00
Construction Documents 63,480.00 100.00 63,480.00 63,480.00 0.00
Bidding 17,560.00 100.00 17,560.00 17,560.00 0.00
Construction Administration 70,240.00 32.00 22,476.80 19,667.20 2,809.60
Add Service - Design & 
Construction Docu

125,000.00 100.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 0.00

Add Service - Bidding 
Athletics

6,237.00 100.00 6,237.00 6,237.00 0.00

Add Services - Construction 
Athletics

44,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Add-Service - Rebid Bldg 28,500.00 100.00 28,500.00 28,500.00 0.00
Total Fee 427,937.00 336,173.80 333,364.20 2,809.60

Total Fee 2,809.60

                $2,809.60Total this Invoice

Billings to Date

Current Prior Total
Fee 2,809.60 333,364.20 336,173.80
Totals 2,809.60 333,364.20 336,173.80

  

Wire Instructions: 
Bank Name:           Bank of America 
Mail Stop:              CT EH 42212A 
Address:                 1 Landmark Square, 12th Floor 
                                Stamford, CT 06901 
                                U.S.A. 
ABA Routing No:  026009593 (for Fed wires) 
ABA Routing No:  011900254 (for ACH wires) 
Swift Code:            BOFAUS3N 
Account Name:      Perkins Eastman Architects DPC 
Account No:           009428448595 
  



Mt Greylock Regional School
Capital Gift Project
1781 Cold Spring Rd
Williamstown, MA  01267

October 6, 2020
Invoice No: 65011.00.0 - 27

Project 65011.00.0 Mt. Greylock Admin and Athletic Upgrades

Email invoices to: Joseph - jbergeron@mgrhs.org  cc: d.colli@perkinseastman.com
Professional Services from September 1, 2020 to September 30, 2020
Fee

Billing Phase Fee
%

Comp Earned
Previous

Billing
Current
Billing

Bldg 9 - Schematics 39,800.00 100.00 39,800.00 39,800.00 0.00
Bldg 9 - Design 
Development

33,120.00 100.00 33,120.00 33,120.00 0.00

Bldg 9 - Construction 
Documents

63,480.00 100.00 63,480.00 63,480.00 0.00

Bldg 9 - Bidding 17,560.00 100.00 17,560.00 17,560.00 0.00
Bldg 9 - Construction 
Administration

70,240.00 90.00 63,216.00 49,168.00 14,048.00

Field - Design & 
Construction Docu

125,000.00 100.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 0.00

Field - Bidding Athletics 6,237.00 100.00 6,237.00 6,237.00 0.00
Field - Construction Athletics 44,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Field - Rebid Bldg 28,500.00 100.00 28,500.00 28,500.00 0.00

Total Fee 427,937.00 376,913.00 362,865.00 14,048.00

Total Fee 14,048.00

                $14,048.00Total this Invoice

Billings to Date

Current Prior Total
Fee 14,048.00 362,865.00 376,913.00
Totals 14,048.00 362,865.00 376,913.00

Outstanding Invoices

Number Date Balance
15 10/14/2019 53,487.00
20 3/11/2020 4,214.40
22 5/15/2020 1,404.80
23 6/2/2020 2,809.60
26 9/8/2020 14,048.00
Total 75,963.80



 

Wire Instructions: 
Bank Name:           Bank of America 
Mail Stop:              CT EH 42212A 
Address:                 1 Landmark Square, 12th Floor 
                                Stamford, CT 06901 
                                U.S.A. 
ABA Routing No:  026009593 (for Fed wires) 
ABA Routing No:  011900254 (for ACH wires) 
Swift Code:            BOFAUS3N 
Account Name:      Perkins Eastman Architects DPC 
Account No:           009428448595 
  

Page 2

Project 2765011.00.0 Mt. Greylock Admin and Athletic Upgrades Invoice



Mt Greylock Regional School
Capital Gift Project
1781 Cold Spring Rd
Williamstown, MA  01267

November 6, 2020
Invoice No: 65011.00.0 - 28

Project 65011.00.0 Mt. Greylock Admin and Athletic Upgrades

Email invoices to: Joseph - jbergeron@mgrhs.org  cc: d.colli@perkinseastman.com
Professional Services from October 1, 2020 to October 31, 2020
Fee

Billing Phase Fee
%

Comp Earned
Previous

Billing
Current
Billing

Bldg 9 - Schematics 39,800.00 100.00 39,800.00 39,800.00 0.00
Bldg 9 - Design 
Development

33,120.00 100.00 33,120.00 33,120.00 0.00

Bldg 9 - Construction 
Documents

63,480.00 100.00 63,480.00 63,480.00 0.00

Bldg 9 - Bidding 17,560.00 100.00 17,560.00 17,560.00 0.00
Bldg 9 - Construction 
Administration

70,240.00 100.00 70,240.00 63,216.00 7,024.00

Field - Design & 
Construction Docu

125,000.00 100.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 0.00

Field - Bidding Athletics 6,237.00 100.00 6,237.00 6,237.00 0.00
Field - Construction Athletics 44,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Field - Rebid Bldg 28,500.00 100.00 28,500.00 28,500.00 0.00

Total Fee 427,937.00 383,937.00 376,913.00 7,024.00

Total Fee 7,024.00

                $7,024.00Total this Invoice

Billings to Date

Current Prior Total
Fee 7,024.00 376,913.00 383,937.00
Totals 7,024.00 376,913.00 383,937.00

Outstanding Invoices

Number Date Balance
21 4/14/2020 2,809.60
27 10/6/2020 14,048.00
Total 16,857.60



 

Wire Instructions: 
Bank Name:           Bank of America 
Mail Stop:              CT EH 42212A 
Address:                 1 Landmark Square, 12th Floor 
                                Stamford, CT 06901 
                                U.S.A. 
ABA Routing No:  026009593 (for Fed wires) 
ABA Routing No:  011900254 (for ACH wires) 
Swift Code:            BOFAUS3N 
Account Name:      Perkins Eastman Architects DPC 
Account No:           009428448595 
  

Page 2

Project 2865011.00.0 Mt. Greylock Admin and Athletic Upgrades Invoice











Report from MASC's 75th annual meeting 
MASC's 75th annual meeting was held remotely on Saturday, November 7, convening at 1:00pm. 
A total of 143 delegates representing school districts across the state were registered and 
participated in the deliberations of the meeting. 
 
The meeting was led by MASC President Deborah Davis (Northeast Metro Voc. Tech.). The 
Association's Financial Report was presented by Secretary-Treasurer Stacey Rizzo (Revere). 
Immediate Past President Devin Sheehan (Holyoke) presided over the board elections in his role as 
Chair of the Nominating Committee. President-Elect Ellen Holmes (Ashburnham-Westminster), 
who chaired the Resolutions Committee, introduced the ten resolutions that were considered and 
voted on by the delegates. 
Following is a summary of actions taken on the resolutions and on the voting of Life Members and 
the incoming Board of Directors. 
Approved for Life Membership were: Joshua Amaral (New Bedford); Richard Bath (Brockton); 
Alfred "Fred" Fantini (Cambridge); Elaine Rabbitt (Dudley-Charlton); and Marc Terry (Ashland). 
Full bios of these new life appears are printed in the 2020 Delegate Manual. 
Elected to the 2021 MASC Board of Directors were: as President-Elect, Andrea Wadsworth (Lee); 
as Vice President, Stacey Rizzo (Revere); as Secretary-Treasurer, Mildred Lefebvre (Holyoke). 
Ellen Holmes, who is the 2020 President-Elect, becomes President on January 1, 2021. Current 
President Deborah Davis becomes Immediate Past President at the same time. 
The contested race for President-Elect was won by Andrea Wadsworth on a vote of 69-51. 
Following are the actions taken on the ten proposed resolutions: 
In the interest of expediting discussion and allowing more time for resolutions of a more 
controversial nature, a special procedural action was adopted that allowed delegates to vote on 
resolutions considered non-controversial as a group. Each resolution was presented and delegates 
identified those resolutions that they wished "held" for further discussion. Those resolutions not 
held, were voted and approved as a single slate. 
The five resolutions that were voted and approved as a group are listed below. The full text of the 
resolutions is printed in the Delegate Manual and posted on the MASC website. 
Resolution 2: State Funding for COVID 
Resolution 3: Anti-racism Resolution 
Resolution 6: Retention of Medicaid Revenue 
Resolution 8: Membership of a School Committee Member on the Board of Elementary and 
Secondary Education 
Resolution 9: Equity for LGBTQ Students and Staff 
The resolutions listed above were approved unanimously by the delegates. 
Following are the actions taken on the remaining five resolutions that the delegates held for in-
depth discussion. 
Resolution 1: MCAS and High Stakes Testing 
(submitted by the MASC Board of Directors) 
BE IT RESOLVED that MASC rejects the calls for the students of 2022 who missed their tenth 
grade MCAS testing to be required to make it up in the 2020-2021 school year or ever. We demand 
those students be held harmless for not taking the MCAS and that their graduation requirements 

https://www.masc.org/member-resources-3/news/latest-events/36-conference/1226-report-from-masc-s-75th-annual-meeting
https://www.masc.org/images/events/2020/2020-Delegate-Manual.pdf
https://www.masc.org/images/forms/nominationforms/reportofrescommittee2020.pdf


shall be determined by locally controlled voices of the School Committee and School 
Administration within the remaining graduation requirements of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts. 
Additionally, we reiterate our call for a moratorium on all high stakes testing for the 2020-2021 
school year so all students can benefit from their time being focused on direct instruction and we 
urge the legislature to enact a moratorium on high stakes testing of three years. 
A motion was made by the Beverly School Committee to table the resolution. 
The motion to table failed on a vote of 102-21. 
The resolution passed, as presented, on a vote of 112-9, with 2 abstentions. 
Resolution 4: Lowering the Voting Age to 16 in Municipal Elections 
(submitted by the MASC Board of Directors) 
BE IT RESOLVED that the sponsors call upon the Massachusetts legislature to pass the 
EMPOWER Act and take other means necessary to allow cities and towns to establish a minimum 
voting age of sixteen years for all municipal elections. 
The resolution passed, as presented, on a vote of 65-49, with 4 abstentions. 
Resolution 5: Increased Federal Support and Stimulus Funding for Public K-12 Education 
BE IT RESOLVED that MASC align with state superintendents of schools and urge the 
Massachusetts Congressional Delegation and state legislators to advocate for and approve 
additional education funding for our nation's public schools through the enactment of progressive 
tax legislation. 
An amendment was proposed by the Framingham School Committee to strike the words "through 
the enactment of progressive tax legislation" as they appear at the end of the paragraph beginning 
BE IT RESOLVED (above) and as the same language appears the at the end of the paragraph that 
precedes the BE IT RESOLVED paragraph in the full resolution. 
The proposed amendment was approved on a vote of 72-28 with 10 abstentions. 
The resolution as amended was approved on a vote of 117-1 with 1 abstention. 
Resolution 7: Attempts by US Department of Education to Direct Public Funding to Private 
Schools 
BE IT RESOLVED that MASC petition the Attorney General of Massachusetts to review and 
recommend to the Executive Office of Education and the MA Department of Elementary and 
Secondary Education to review the formal language of such statutes that determine the distribution 
of federal funds to benefit economically disadvantaged students and, further that the Attorney 
General provide legal guidance to state agencies in Massachusetts to implement such formulas 
based on the actual language and legislative intent of the statute should that be in variance with any 
"advisory" issued by the United States Secretary of Education. 
A motion to table was made by the Beverly School Committee. 
The motion did not pass on a vote of 71-34. 
The resolution passed as proposed on a vote of 108-6, with 1 abstention. 
Resolution 10: Monitoring of Attendance of Students During the Pandemic 
BE IT RESOLVED that MASC advocate for legislation and regulation that protect the rights of 
parents to withhold their children from school for reasons of their health status or health risk and, 
further 
ν That MASC advocate for regulations that hold districts accountable for the attendance of students 
provide appropriate exemptions for students who experience or require extended absences from 
school due to health-related issues or concerns due to the COVID-19 pandemic and, further 



ν That MASC petition the Board of Elementary and Secondary Education to waive all 
accountability requirements regarding attendance for the 2020-2021 school year, and 
ν That such regulations exempt districts from sanction status on the basis of attendance when such 
absences are related to a public health crisis, including COVID-19. 
A motion was made to table the resolution. 
The motion to table the resolution passed on a vote of 71-34. 
Following concluding remarks from President Davis and incoming President Holmes, the assembly 
adjourned at 4:23pm. 
 



Boston

Charlotte

Chicago

Dallas

Dubai

Guayaquil

Los Angeles

Mumbai

New York

Pittsburgh

San Francisco

Shanghai

Stamford

Toronto

Washington DC

Perkins Eastman
Architects DPC

115 Fifth Avenue
New York, NY 10003
212.353.7200

P E R K I NS E A S T M A N .C O M

 

November 23, 2020 
 
Mr. Joe Bergeron  
Business Manager  
Mount Greylock Regional School District   
1781 Cold Spring Road  
Williamstown, MA 01267 
 
Re: Mount Greylock Capital Gift project phase 2 – Add Services to re-bid and re-design 
the Athletic Upgrades Scope     
 
Dear Mr. Bergeron,  
 
We appreciate the opportunity to continue our work with the district as you continue to 
work thru the scope of imporvements for the phase 2 of the Administration and Athletics 
Project.   As you are aware the project was originally bid in September of 2019, 
unfortunaltely the results of that bid were not favorable due to a number of market 
factors which were outlined in a memo prepared by Traverse Landscape Architecture 
dated 9/22/19.    On November 19th we submitted a proposal to re-bid the project with 
revisions to bring it into line with the proposed budget, however these efforts were 
impacted by concerns raised by the community about the use of synthetic turf and the 
request for the committee to examine alternatives to the standard crumb rubber infill 
synthetic fields.  
 
We understand that the district is now prepared to move forward with a re-bidding 
scenario and that the primary field will be synthetic turf with brock fill as an alternative  
infill to the traditional crumb rubber, we also understand that a number of other Value 
Engineering (VE) options may be selected from the current list which includes:  
 

• Change the Softball Field from sod to seed 
• Removal of the outfield fencing at the softball field  
• Eliminate the underdrainage system  
• Eliminate all equipment out of the dugouts  
• Change end zone netting to 200’ total  
• Eliminate Portable Player Benches  
• Reduce Portable bleacher system from 4 to 2 units  
• Eliminate Athletic Field Lighting but keep conduit for future installation  
• Change all walks from Concrete to Bitiminious  

 
Our team will work with the committee to develop the final scope, we suggest that the 
committee engage a cost estimator to provide a professional opinion of cost.  The current 
bidding climate is favorable and it would be wise for the district to craft the project scope 
with this in mind as it is very possible that the VE required in 2019 will not be required 
at this time to meet the target budget.   Once we understand the final scope we can 
disuss potential alternates, additive or deductive to maximize the districts investment in 
the right places.   
 
It is important to note that site assessibility remains the primary goal of this project as 
you are currently operating under a time variance from the state Architectural Access 
Board to remedy those issues.   We understand your second priority is to develop the 



 

main synthetic field as that will serve many athletic programs and allow for increased 
and expanded use.   
 
PROJECT TEAM: 
 

• Traverse Lanscape Architecture  
• InSite Engineering (Civil Engineering)  
• Perkins Eastman  

 
SCHEDULE  
 

• It is our suggestion that the project be ready for bidding in late February 2021 
for Summer 2021 construction.    

 
DELIVERABLES:  
 

• We understand that the project will be bid Chapter 30b with the Site Contractor 
as prime contractor.   

• We will provide updated CD drawings and specifications for the district 
committee review.  We suggest that these drawings be estimated, we will 
coordinate with the districts estimator or we can have the estaimate completed 
as a reimbursable expense to the project.   

• We will create a permitting package and coordinatethe necessary site permits 
with the Town of Williamstown.   

 
We are considering this project to be an additional service to the Primary project under 
contract, as such it will be bound by the same terms and conditions as the exectuted 
contract already in place with the district.  
 
The previous project structure had Traverse Landscape as the primary contact and 
project lead, we understand that the district would perfer Perkins Eastman to provide 
management and oversight to ensure the project is properly executed.   
 
FEE:  
 
Basic Services Lump Sum -       $   44,000 
 
There has been discussion regarding the addition of irrigation to the new grass fields, we 
are aware of the issues surrounding this potentail add to the project and will provide 
guidance as necessary, the fees to design the system are as follows  
 
Design         $   16,200 
Bidding & CA Services       $     8,700 
       
ADD SERVICES:  
 
Engineering and permitting for Athletic Field Lighting – we understand that the Fields 
Sub-Committee has discussed the possibility of adding lighting to the athletic fields, this 
scope of work would include the following: 



 

o Electrical Engineering – primary power and distribution (conduit layout 
will be included in basic services)  

o Structural / Geo-technical – foundation design  
o Civil Engineering – Permits would have to be filed with the Town 
o Irrigation Well location and Drilling services  

 
We can provide proposals for the services associated with the field lighting if requested, 
we suggest that the irrigation well location and drilling be contracted thru the district 
directly as that is primarily a local service and should be done by a professional familiar 
with the area.  
 
EXCLUSIONS:  
 
Our previous agreement includes Construction Administration (CA) services for (1) phase 
of the project under the basic services agreement.  For example, if funding allows the 
district may be able to construct Phase 1 and 2 concurrently and we will provide CA 
services for that project; however, if the project is bid over several years and requires 
multiple seasonal CA efforts we will at that point provide a proposal for stand-alone CA 
services. 
 
Please review our proposal, if you have any questions or require any clarifications please 
do not hesitate to contact me directly.  We very much look forward to continuing our work 
with you both and the Committee on this exciting project. 
 
 
Regards, 
 

 
 
Daniel Colli, AIA, LEED AP BD+C  
Principal  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________  ________________ 
ACCEPTED BY        DATE  


	00     School Committee Agenda 11.23.20 (1)
	05      MGRSD Chair History
	06a    Public comment, Sheila and David Parks
	07A     10.8.20 Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	07B    2020 10 16 Open School Committee DRAFT minutes
	07C    10_22_20 Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	07D    2020_10_28 MtG joint meeting Williamstown Lanesborough boards of selectmen DRAFT minutes
	08    Co-Curricular Fall Summary, Winter Proposal & MIAA Modifications revised
	Co-Curricular Fall Summary, Winter Proposal & MIAA Modifications.pdf
	MIAA Winter Modifications.pdf
	Basketball_Modifications_Winter_2020.pdf
	Nordic_Ski_Modifications_Winter_2020.pdf


	10A    MGRSD Retirees
	10B     Snow Days for the 20-21 School Year
	11     MGL 71 Section 16A District Secretary
	MGL 71 Section 16A: Regional district school committee; selection, powers and duties of officers; signing of payroll and accounts payable warrants; audits

	12     MGL 71 Section 16A Treasurer & Asst Treasurer
	14B1a   2020-1106 Payroll Distribution Report-#10-11-6-20
	14B1b   2020-1106 Voucher #17-11-6-20
	14B1c    2020-1106 Voucher Detail Listing#1031-11-6-20
	14B1d    2020-1106 Voucher-#1031-11-6-20
	14B1e    2020-1120 Payroll Distribution Report-#11-11-20-20
	14B1f     2020-1120 Voucher #18-11-20-2020
	14B1g    2020-1120 Voucher #1033-11-20-2020
	14B1h    2020-1120 Voucher Detail Listing-#1033-11-20-2020
	14B2a    2020-1106 Accounts Payable Warrant #10.11 11.6.20
	14B2b   2020-1120 Accounts Payable Warrant
	14B3   CW#2 School Committee Voucher 10-26-20
	14D    Building Comm Composition November 2020 DRAFT
	14E     WES - Wheel Invoice
	14F   MGRS Multipurpose Building Closeout documents
	2020-11-23 MGRS Williams Capital Gift Payment
	CME 75001 Invoice (multi-purpose close out)
	PE 65011.00.0 - 21
	PE 65011.00.0 - 27
	PE 65011.00.0-28
	Tierney Requisition 11 - Signed
	Tierney Requisition 11

	15      Report from MASC 11.7.20 meeting
	Report from MASC's 75th annual meeting

	16    Proposal for Phase 2 AS Perkins Eastman



